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Financial Highlights
BBRE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S H=
—E—+tHF —ZE—RF Increase/
+=A=+—-8A +=—A=+—H (decrease) in
Key Financial Figures and Ratios T ZEHKEHR KL= IEFE WEEE #m/ Cad)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000 %
Bt FET FHT Aot
Performance E4
Revenue W %5 2,915 1,785 63.31%
Loss before taxation bR AT ES 1R (123,593) (114,413 8.02%
Loss for the year* FREE" (123,593) (114,413 8.02%
Loss attributable to owners of AR AFEMLEE
the Company (123,593) (114,413) 8.02%
Net loss margin FEIEE 1 (4,239.90)% (6,409.69)% (33.85%)
HK cents HK cents
Per Share Data sREH AL P
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and Diluted” —H AR EA (4.86) (5.28)
A Number of shares: A RHEE :
’000 ‘000
T F &
Weighted average number of FrEEFREARE TR
ordinary shares for the purpose % 2 & i@ A% hn4E
of calculating basic earnings T (M)
per share (Note) 2,545,238 2,168,932
Note: Biat -
The calculation of basic loss per share for the years ended 31 BE_T+HER_F-R"FT+_A=+—HLFEZ
December 2017 and 2016 is based on the loss attributable to owners ERENBENIRESFEARAEEARLERERE
of the Company for the years and the weighted average number of A N R EGTE -
shares for the relevant period.
The weighted average of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating BE_ZtFt-A=1+RAULEFE FEERELE
basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 have been BERA EREEFHHECD MR —F—LF—
adjusted for the effects of both placing and rights issue completed A+B -—2—+F=AtAR=F-\F-A-HA%K
on 10 January 2017, 7 March 2017 and 2 January 2018 respectively ZEERERFEBELAR (ZS—RF: 258K =
(2016: adjusted for the effect of placing completed on 26 January E-—RE-AZtXRB —Z-RFLA+NBR-F
2016, 18 July 2016 and 22 December 2016 respectively). The rights —RNEFTZAZFT AR ZREZHEELFAE) - &
issue completed on 2 January 2018 has been reflected retrospectively E-R-RNF+ A=+ HIEFEZERBBRNEFS
by restating the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HFELEY NEBEPRBR_ZT—N\F-AZHZKZ
year ended 31 December 2016. MRz E-
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company’s BE_Z—tHfrk-_FT—XE+-_A=+—HLEFE"
outstanding share options were not included in the calculation of HRARFZ HARTTEEREARBEZE SEHEK
diluted loss per share because the effect of the Company’s outstanding BEEBRIEBARARZ MRITERBREAEEARN-
share options were anti-dilutive.
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Financial Highlights

MBHE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
S H=
—E—+tHF AN Increase/
+=A=+—-8 +=—A=+—H (decrease) in
IEFE WEEE #in/ ()
Key Financial Figures and Ratios FEPHEERKLLE  Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000 %
g3 FEx FHET Bkt
Total assets BEMRE 174,931 207,737 (15.79)%
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bfg) EEFE (47,443) 43,747 (208.45)%
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEHR 34,794 7,401 370.13%
Liquidity and Gearing FBEeREEAR
Current ratio MBI X 2 0.56 1.32 (57.58)%
Quick ratio B X 3 0.56 1.32 (57.58)%
Gearing ratio BEABELE 4 N/ATE A 3.17 N/AT i FR
HK cents HK cents
Per Share Data sRER AL B
Net (iabilities)/assets value per share &% (& 1&) EE
FE 5 (1.97) 2.05 (196.10)%
Net cash per share BRIREFRE 6 1.45 0.35 314.29%
Notes: Biat -

1. Net loss margin is calculated by dividing loss for the year by revenue 1. FEBEETNRFAEBRANEBIR100%5HE
and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

2. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current 2. RELEDNERBEERTBEERE-
liabilities.

3. Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets (net of work in 3. RENETDNRREEE (HBRAKRTKIEER )RR
progress) by current liabilities. AfEstHE-

4. Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity. Total 4, EBEAGBHEDNREBEERERBETE -EF
debt comprises short-term loans, obligations under finance leases, REPFEHER BREHRERE ALEERHE
promissory notes and interest-bearing other payables. ftb st BB RIE

5. Net asset value per share is calculated based on the number of 5 BREEFMETIR2,402,260913 (ZF—/RF:
2,402,260,913 shares (2016: 2,132,260,913 shares). 2,132,260,913% ) KA B B 5 & -

6. Net cash per share is calculated based on the number of 6. BRIAEFEIIIK2,402,260,913/% (ZF—/<F:
2,402,260,913 shares (2016: 2,132,260,913 shares). 2,132,260,913% ) R A B B &t & -
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FTREHREEEEENRNE DN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of National Investments
Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Review Period”).

The Company is an investment company and the Group is principally
engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted
companies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Review Period, the Group’s revenue recorded a net gain
of approximately HK$2,915,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2016 (“Last Corresponding Period”): net gain of approximately
HK$1,785,000). Excluding the net gain of approximately HK$575,000
(Last Corresponding Period: the net loss of approximately HK$200,000)
recorded on the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), the Group’s revenue increased by approximately 17.88%
to approximately HK$2,340,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
approximately HK$1,985,000). The proceeds on sales of equity securities
were approximately HK$13,365,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
approximately HK$7,459,000), and the cost of sales were approximately
HK$12,790,000 (Last Corresponding Period: approximately
HK$7,659,000). The net realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL was
therefore approximately HK$575,000 (Last Corresponding Period: the
net realised loss of approximately HK$200,000). Apart from the net
realised gain on financial assets at FVTPL, there was no unrealised gain
on financial assets at FVTPL (Last Corresponding Period: NIL).

For the Review Period, the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$123,593,000 (Last Corresponding
Period: approximately HK$114,413,000). The loss was primarily
attributable to (i) impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets
of approximately HK$13,868,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
approximately HK$18,388,000); (i) impairment loss of other tangible
assets of approximately HK$1,007,000 (Last Corresponding Period:
approximately HK$86,000); (i) impairment loss of other receivable of
approximately HK$40,800,000 (Last Corresponding Period: Nil); and
(iv) finance costs of approximately HK$15,415,000 (Last Corresponding
Period: approximately HK$11,922,000).

6 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017

AABRKRBEBREEZSBERAR ([ARR]ES
S ([EF2g | )MAZIERRREMBRR (5
[AEEDBE_FT—tFt_A=1T—BLFE
(THESE)) 22 FEE-

ARARR—BRERAR MAKREZIBEBK AR
BREMMIEEMARZZ TR ERS -

£ e

P EIEE R - A E U s 8715 MR 5 R 58 492,915,000
BT (BE_Z—RE+-_A=+—BILEEE ([
FRE]) - W FFE 1,785,000 7T) 14 5 B 7
BEEREAALBEINER([REFZRZAAEET
RS REESSAIEFEELS75,000%8 7T (X
R H - B 18 F 58 49200,0005% 7T ) - BIIARE B~ Ik
AN #I17.88%F #92,340,0008 7T (EF R H:
#91,985,000/87T) - IR AFEH 2 HEMBRIBLAOR
13,365,000/% 7T (& & [F A1 : 497,459,000/ 7T)
e E R A% A12,790,0008 T (EE R 4
7,659,000 70) - At RIETZRIZAABEYIEKZ
THMEEDER WD FELNAES75,0008 T (EFR
B B 2R EBF R 4200,0008 L) cBRIBREER
BEAnBEIREZSMEEDERKRZFEN #
BEBREEREBANEBEIEZCAREERER KA
(EFRHEA &) -

REBHBE XA EEABRBGFABELA
128,593,000 7t (X F R H : #7114,413,0007%
T o BEETERAONVIHEEcMEEZRES
8 #913,868,0007% 7t (& 4F [F B : #718,388,000/%
7o) ¢ (E B A EREE1E41,007,0008 7T (£
4 [7] 8 : #986,000/%8 7T ) + (i) E b F& U B B E B
8 4940,800,000 7T ( K F R H : £8) K (iv)Bh & AL
A #915,415,0007 7T (& F [F B9 : #911,922,000/%5
JL) e



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

In the year of 2018, the world’s economy continues to fill with challenges
and uncertainties. Affected by the global economy (in particular the
economy of China), the financial market in Hong Kong was confronted
with numerous challenges and uncertainties. Recently the United States
government is trying to use trade protectionist measures as remedial
tools for trade disputes with China which may affect China’s normal
trade relations with the United States and cause uncertainty to the global
economy due to trade war threats between the world’s biggest two
nations. Internally, the China’s economy growth also face various issues,
such as its domestic debt, which may affect its economic growth. The
uncertainties may hinder the investor’s confidence in financial market and
it is expected that the stock market may remain volatile.

The Group will continue to implement a diversified investment strategies
and to identify suitable investment opportunities with potential assets
appreciation that will furtherance our Company’s investment objectives
and policies and also to generate better returns for the Group and the
shareholders of the Company. Despite the difficult market conditions, the
Group would endeavor to bring positive returns under our investment
portfolio to the shareholders of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Review Period (Last Corresponding Period: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TERERER E R M

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$34,794,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$7,401,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had issued promissory notes
in the aggregate amount of HK$110,000,000. Eleven promissory notes
in the denomination of HK$10,000,000 each were issued to eleven
independent third parties. Each promissory note bears interest at a rate
of 5% per annum with a maturity period of seven years from the date of
issue. The net proceeds were used for investment in securities and as
general working capital of the Group.

The net current liabilities held by the Group as at 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$49,332,000 (2016: net current assets of
approximately HK$17,878,000). Save and except the above, the Group
had no other outstanding credit facility from other financial institution as
at 31 December 2017. As all cash and cash equivalents were maintained
in Hong Kong Dollars accounts with banks in Hong Kong, exposure to
exchange fluctuation is considered minimal. The gearing ratio, calculated
on the basis of total debt over total equity as at 31 December 2017, was
not applicable (2016: approximately 3.174).

The Company has entered into a loan agreement with Enhanced Finance
Limited (“Enhanced”) on 14 January 2016 for a loan facility in the total
amount of HK$65,000,000 (the “Enhanced Facility”). On 20 June 2016,
the Company, Enhanced and Hansom Finance Limited (“Hansom”)
entered into a deed of assignment (“Deed of Assignment”) whereas
Enhanced, as the assignor, assigned the outstanding principal (i.e.
HK$15,000,000) of the Enhanced Facility to Hansom (the “Assigned
Loan”).

Prior to the date of the Deed of Assignment, the Company has entered
into two respective loan agreements with Hansom on 8 April 2016 and
16 May 2016 for loan facilities in the total amount of HK$5,000,000 (the
“First Facility”) and HK$5,000,000 (the “Second Facility”) respectively.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to extend the repayment dates, the Company and Hansom
agreed to enter into a deed of promissory note (the “PN Deed”) on 20
June 2016 to merge the First Facility, the Second Facility, the Assigned
Loan and the outstanding interest accrued on the Assigned Loan into a
single debt so that such merged debt shall be payable and secured by in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the PN Deed. Pursuant to
the PN Deed, the Company covenanted to repay the debt to Hansom on
or before 19 December 2016 with an interest at the rate of 3% per month
commencing from 20 June 2016. The Company charged its assets by
way of floating charge as well as the interest its wholly owned subsidiaries
in favour of Hansom as security of the debt.

Pursuant to the deed of assignment made between Hansom and
Citizens Money Lending Corporation Limited (“Citizens”) on 19 July 2016,
Hansom assigned all its rights, title, benefits and interest in the debt under
the PN Deed to Citizens.

On 2 January 2018, the Company completed a rights issue and issued
1,201,130,456 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.035 each. The Company has applied part of the net
proceeds from the rights issue to fully settle the indebtedness owed to
Citizens.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange. Changes
in the capital structure of the Company during the Review Period are set
out below.

On 10 January 2017, the Company completed the placing of
160,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a placing
agent to not less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.1
per placing share which represented a discount of approximately 9.09%
to the closing price of HK$0.110 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 6 January 2017, being the date of placing agreement. The
net proceeds of the placing is in the amount of approximately HK$15.52
million, which represents a net price of HK$0.097 per placing share. The
balance of approximately HK$9.88 million was used for investments in
Hong Kong listed securities pursuant to the investment objectives of
the Group. The balance of approximately HK$0.75 million was used for
settlement of the promissory notes interest and debt interest, while the
balance of approximately HK$4.89 million was used for general working
capital. Details of the placing were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 January 2017 and 10 January 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TERERER E R M

On 7 March 2017, the Company completed the placing of 110,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each through a placing agent to not
less than six independent investors at a price of HK$0.142 per placing
share which represented a discount of approximately 19.77% to the
closing price of HK$0.177 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 28 February 2017, being the date of the placing agreement. The net
proceeds of the placing is in the amount of approximately HK$15.15
million, which represents a net price of HK$0.138 per placing share.
The balance of approximately HK$1.5 million was used for settlement
of the promissory notes interest and debt interest, while the balance of
approximately HK$13.65 million was used for general working capital.
Details of the placing were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 28 February 2017 and 7 March 2017.

On 2 January 2018, the Company completed a rights issue and
issued 1,201,130,456 new shares with par value of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.035 per rights share on the basis of two rights
shares for every one then existing share held, and the net proceeds of
the Rights Issue, after deducting the related expense, were approximately
HK$40,280,000 which were mainly used to repay the principal amount
and interests of Group’s loans including the Citizens Money Lending
Corporation Limited. Details of the rights issue were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 November 2017, 28
November 2017, 2 January 2018 and the prospectus of the Company 7
December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of issued ordinary shares of
the Company was 2,402,260,913 shares (2016: 2,132,260,913 shares).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 26 employees (2016: 30
employees), including executive directors and independent non-
executive directors. The total employment costs incurred during
the Review Period were approximately HK$20,813,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,683,000). The Group’s remuneration policies are
in line with the prevailing market practice and are determined based
on the performance, level of responsibility and experience of individual
employees.

Further, as incentives or rewards for employees’ contributions to the
Company, the Company adopted a share option scheme on 27 August
2007 (which was terminated on 30 June 2017) and a new share option
scheme on 30 June 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material capital
commitments (2016: Nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2016, the Group as borrower entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party as lender for a short-term loan of approximately
HK$25,716,000. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding balance
payable by the Group is approximately HK$39,130,000, which includes
the outstanding principal and accrued interest payable. Pursuant to
the loan agreement, the Group pledged the interest in its wholly owned
subsidiaries in favour of Massive Shine Limited, Old Peak Limited, Eighty
Riches Limited, Union Power Holdings Limited and Fine East Trading
Limited as chargees.

In 2017, the Group as borrower entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party as lender for a short-term loan of approximately
HK$1,500,000. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding balance
payable by the Group is approximately HK$1,580,000, which includes
the outstanding principal and accrued interest payable.

As at 31 December 2017, bank deposits in the amount of approximately
HK$2,070,000 (2016: HK$2,040,000) were pledged to a bank as
security for certain trade credit facilities granted to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there were no charges over any of the Group’s
assets or significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

TEMERERE TR LT

BERARE

RIB—tF+_A=+t—H FEEYLEEME
REAAZ(ZT—RF E) -

rEEEERFRIAERE

RZE—RE AEE (EAERAN)EBBIYE=F
(ERERAN) B E 25,716,000 5] L B
HpFE-R_E—tF+_A=+—B AEEEN
e R (B R $A % 4939,130,000/8 7T - BIEMAEELS
R e FEET AR - RIZ B R & - 78 & B AMassive
Shine Limited » Old Peak Limited - Eighty Riches
Limited » Union Power Holdings Limited Xz Fine East
Traolmg Limited (tEREARAN) A ARFAREER
NE2EMB AR 2 -

EA—“—tintS&l(1”&7%1ﬁ§x/\>£ﬁaé%i%:ﬁ
(EBERA) BLEHE 1,500,000/ T05] ML E K
T Eé_z—tiJr_ﬂ:Jr B zli%lféfﬁréu
KREEFREL1,580,0008 T BREMAEERAE R
FEA FEETF B ©

R-ZZFE—tF+ - H=+—8H"42,070,000% 7T
(ZZ—7X%F :2,040,000/870) ZRITEFERCEFF
BIT UBBEETFASEZETE S EAME-

BEXPREEEN R -T—tF+-_A=+—8"
AEEVEERETMEEXERLAEE

BRREELER DT 2017F§ 11



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TERERER E SR M

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION AND GOING
CONCERN

The Board prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis
based on the cash flow projections of the Group covering a period of not
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting period prepared by
the Company’s management. Both the Board and the audit committee
are of the opinion that, taking into account the plans for additional
financing and amicable disposal of the winding up petition and measures
to control costs and generate adequate cash flows from the Group’s
operations, the Group would have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 on a going concern basis. Whilst the Board
and the audit committee are confident for the successful implementation
of the above-mentioned plans and measures, the auditors expressed a
disclaimer of opinion (details of which are set out in the section headed
“Disclaimer of Opinion” in the Independent Auditor’s report in pages 58 to
61 in this report) as they took the view that the going concern basis would
depend on the outcome of the above-mentioned plans and measures
which are subject to the following uncertainties including (i) whether the
Group is able to successfully obtain additional financing as and when
required, the achievability of which depends on the future performance of
the Group; (i) whether the Group is able to implement its operation plans
for control costs and to generate adequate cash flow from operations,
the achievability of which depends on the market environment which is
expected to remain challenging; and (i) whether the Group is able to
successfully negotiate with Medisun Holdings Limited (the “Petitioner”) for
an amicable disposal of the petition out of the High Court and negotiate
with the Creditor for the settlement of the outstanding balance. The
audit committee has reviewed and agreed with the Board’s position
concerning the audit qualification. The audit committee had discussed
with the Company’s auditors regarding the financial statements and the
cashflow projection (including the achievability of the abovementioned
plans and measures) in order to resolve the audit qualification. Whilst
the audit committee is of the view that the abovementioned plans and
measures are achievable, the Company’s auditor is of the view that there
is insufficient audit evidence for certainty of the outcome of the above-
mentioned plans and measures which will only be implemented in 2018
and took the view that it is appropriate to express a disclaimer of opinion
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company will endeavor to implement the abovementioned plans and
measures.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

For the plan for raising additional financing, the Company plans to raise
fund by way of rights issue and expects to receive the proceeds of not
less than HK$50 million in July 2018. The Company has commenced
discussion with the prospective underwriters for rights issue. For the
plan for amicable disposal of the winding up petition, the Company
commenced negotiation with the Petitioner and expects to reach
settlement by 31 May 2018. For the measures to control costs and
generate adequate cash flows from the Group’s operations, they are
ongoing for the entire year of 2018.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to our most valued shareholders and business
partners for their continuous trust and unfailing support. | would also like
to take this opportunity to express our appreciation and gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and hard work.

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Danny F., aged 55, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics and Accounting from China Central University of Finance
and Economics. Mr. Wong has over 25 years of experience in investment
project evaluation, listing planning and asset management. From 2001 to
2005, Mr. Wong was an executive director of Sun Hung Kai International
Limited and was in charge of investment banking and responsible for
public listing of companies and fund raising activities for private and
listed companies. Mr. Wong was an executive director of CMBC Capital
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Poly Capital Holdings Limited)
(Stock code: 1141) from June 2009 to August 2009, and he also was
an executive director and the chairman of HengTen Networks Group
Limited (formerly known as Mascotte Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 136)
from February 2014 to June 2014, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. During the period from November 2014 to August 2016,
Mr. Wong was a non-executive director of Celyad S.A. (formerly known as
Cardio3 Biosciences S.A.) (Symbol: CYAD) which is listed on NASDAQ in
the United States.

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick, aged 76, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 6 January 2004. He also served as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for the period from 1 November 2005
to 19 May 2014 and the period from 31 August 2015 to 20 March 2016.
Mr. Wu was educated in Hong Kong and the United States with a Master
of Business Administration degree in Finance. He has over 43 years of
experience in insurance, securities business and asset management.
He started his career with Paul Revere Life Insurance Company as an
assistant actuary. He later worked for Fidelity Management and Research
of Boston as an analyst and then moved on to senior positions in
research and fund management with various well-known institutions in
the United States. In the early 80s, Mr. Wu joined and served as a senior
portfolio manager and investment advisor at Bank of America in Hong
Kong. In the 90s, Mr. Wu joined and was elected as a director and senior
consultant of Lippo Securities Group Limited (“Lippo Securities Group”).
He was a member of Lippo Securities Group investment committee
and was responsible for supervising the fund management activities
including futures-related investments of Lippo Securities Group. Mr. Wu is
currently a responsible officer registered under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. FONG Chi Wah, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 1 November 2005. Dr. Fong is a fellow member
of HKICPA and CPA Australia, a Chartered Financial Analyst and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in management science (economics) from Lancaster University,
United Kingdom, a Master’s degree in business administration from
Warwick University, United Kingdom, a Master’s degree in investment
management from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology,
a Master’s degree in practising accounting from Monash University,
Australia, a Doctorate in business administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Juris Doctor from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Dr. Fong has over 25 years of extensive experience in
various sectors of the financial industry, including direct investment,
project and structured finance, and capital markets with focus on
Mainland China and Hong Kong. He was a director of Baring Capital
(China) Management Limited and held various management positions
in ING Bank. Dr. Fong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Innovationpay Group Limited (Stock code: 8083) since
19 December 2003 and Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (Stock code:
2010) since 28 March 2008, both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 22 May 2007.
Mr. Char holds a Bachelor of Laws degree (Honours) from the University
of London, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences (Criminology) from
the University of Hong Kong, a Master’s degree in Social Sciences
(Counselling) from the University of Hong Kong and a Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Char had been
a Chief Investigator and Senior Assignment Officer of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004. Mr.
Char was a Chief Executive Officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.
Mr. Char is a Barrister at Law and an Accredited Mediator. Mr. Char has
been serving as an independent non-executive director of China Uptown
Group Company Limited (stock code: 2330) since September 2015,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXNRAEEERE

Mr. Liu Jin, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 21 May 2007. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in International Economic Law from the Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Liu has been a qualified solicitor in the PRC
since 2001 and has various experience in merger and acquisition and
corporate restructure in the PRC. Mr. Liu is currently a qualified solicitor
practicing in Shenzhen, the PRC.

Mr. Law Tze Lun, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 12 December 2013. Mr. Law is a
practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is currently a
director of ANSA CPA Limited. Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce (Accounting) from Curtin University of Technology. He is
a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and finance gained from various accounting firms in Hong
Kong. Mr. Law has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Come Sure Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 794) since
February 2009 and Gemini Investments (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
174) since November 2010, both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive director of Tak
Lee Machinery Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8142) with effect from 26
July 2017 which are listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.
During the period from April 2010 to September 2011, Mr. Law served
as an independent non-executive director of China Automotive Interior
Decoration Holdings Limited (stock code: 8321), which was listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Feng Wen, aged 49, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 21 March 2016. He graduated from the Medical
Department of the Third Military Medical University in 1992 and holds
a Master’s degree from the School of Public Administration, Renmin
University of China (1 Bl A & KX 2) in 2006. Mr. Feng had worked for
the General Office of the Ministry of Health of the PRC and a number of
military hospitals for over 20 years. Mr. Feng is currently the chairman of
the board of Zhong He Hou De Investment Management Co., Ltd, as well
as an independent non-executive director of Golden Meditech Holdings
Limited (stock code: 801), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance practices and procedures to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group. The Board will
review and improve its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that the Group is under the leadership of an effective Board.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviation disclosed below. The Company periodically reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure that the Company complies
with the requirements of the CG Code. The Company acknowledges
the importance of corporate governance and ensures transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

Meetings were held throughout the year and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to directors and senior
management of the Group to ensure that each and every director and
senior management is aware of the importance of corporate governance.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

According to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend general meeting. In respect of the annual general
meeting held on 30 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM”), Mr. Wong Danny F.,
the Chairman of the Board, was engaged in an important business
meeting and was not able to attend. However, Mr. Law Tze Lun, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and members of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company, attend the 2017 AGM and
answered questions raised during the 2017 AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership, approves policies, strategies and plans
and oversees their implementation to ensure the healthy growth of the
Company and to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
the management will prepare and supply the same to the Board and its
committees. The Company Secretary will render his advice to the Board
so that all the Board procedures and applicable rules and regulations
are followed. The directors may make further enquiries if they are of
the view that the information is not sufficient for them to make an
informed decision. In general, each director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist him/her in
discharging his/her duties at the Company’s expenses upon making
such request to the Board.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a director, such matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting and will not be dealt with by way of written resolutions.
Independent non-executive directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings to deal with such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have adopted
the applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings.

During the Review Period, four Board meetings were held and the
attendance of each director at these meetings is set out in the table under
the section headed “Directors’ Attendance at Shareholders’ Mestings,
Board and Committee Meetings”.
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Delegation by the Board

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to the
entering into of any significant transactions by the abovementioned
officers. The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee have specific terms of reference defining the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committees. The committees are
required by their respective terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking any
actions.

The Board reviews, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to
different committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and
remain beneficial to the Company as a whole.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Policy to provide appropriate coverage for any potential claims against
directors and officers. The insurance policy was renewed in April 2017.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. All directors devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors appointed
to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall be subject to re-election
by shareholders. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
with effect from 4 September 2013. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises the
following directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Chengming (Retired on 30 June 2017)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Retired on 30 June 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

List of directors containing the names of the directors (by category) is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company are appointed
for a term up to the forthcoming annual general meeting subject to
renewal and re-election as and when required under the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company. All directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting at least once every three years.
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In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen and Mr. Liu Jin shall
retire as directors by rotation. Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen and Mr. Liu Jin, being eligible, offer himself for a re-election as
Director at the annual general meeting.

The presence of three independent non-executive directors is considered
by the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-
executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can
provide adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The non-executive directors provide
the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so that
independent judgment can effectively be exercised as well as ensuring
that the interests of all shareholders are taken into account. They are also
responsible for participating in Board meetings, dealing with potential
conflicts of interest, serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and scrutinising the Group’s
performance and reporting. Through their active participation, they
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management process
can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgment to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION
PLANNING OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To ensure a balance of power and
authority, Mr. Wong Danny F. and Mr. Feng Wen have been appointed as
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT IR R
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS, BOARD AND ZE
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each director at shareholders’ EEERNFALEREAS EES2RRETEE
meetings, board and committees meetings during the year are set out SEEREFELEFINNAT

below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ETEERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM

Name of Directors EENS Ezg ERZES FMZES REZEE RREATAS
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. TRELE 4/4 - - - 0
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RFFRHE 4/4 - - - oA
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEERE 4/4 - - - 0N
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Gao Chengming BEMEE (K=F—+FEn A 0/4 - = = 0/0

(fetired on 30 June 2017) ZTHEF)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny ARERE (R=F—+ERA 0/4 - - - 0/0

(tetired on 30 June 2017) Z+AEF)
Independent BUFRTES

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHHEE 4/4 22 - 11 0A
Mr. Liu Jin BErE 4/4 22 1/ 11 0/1
Mr. Law Tze Lun ETks 4/4 22 1/1 11 1
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings are served to all directors at least 14 days before the meetings,
who were all given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing agenda
for the meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied with. The
finalised agenda and accompanying board papers are then sent to all
directors at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the year, the Chairman held a meeting with non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of executive directors. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings, including the record of all
decisions by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft minutes are normally circulated to directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors and/or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with its
shareholders and for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint proxies to
attend and vote at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

During the Review Period, apart from the annual general meeting held on
30 June 2017, the Company has not held any other general meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All directors, including non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors, must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the Group
provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each newly appointed
director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and orientations are
provided and organised to ensure that the new directors have a proper
understanding of and are fully aware of the role of the Board, their legal
and other duties as directors as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programsnmes are tailored for each individual
director taking into account his/her background and expertise. The
Company Secretary will regularly update all directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all directors.
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All directors have participated in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to the discharge of their duties as
directors. Details of the trainings received by the respective director,
records of which are kept and updated by the Company Secretary, are as
follows:

EREFC2EASERRALH CHEERER
B PINBEERERALER I REXRE
NBERMEHAREBTESBREE B I ANBNEK
B REERIBIZLEHARMERTRESH
BREFBET:

Types of Trainings
Name of Directors EEHE EINEH
Mr. Wong Danny F. SRR A A B
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RF¥ExE A B
Mr. Fong Chi Wah BESLE A B
Mr. Gao Chengming =L E A B
(Retired on 30 June 2017) (RZB—+ENHA=1HRE)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny 2ImBELE A B
(Retired on 30 June 2017) (R=ZF—FFNA=1HRF)
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen BH®EE A B
Mr. Liu Jin RS A B
Mr. Law Tze Lun BT AE A B

A Attending seminars and/or conferences and/or talks

B: Reading updates on latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

Each director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a
yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature of offices held
by him/her in public companies and organisations and other significant
commitments.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kim Fai is the Company Secretary of the Company. He has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors of the Company. Following specific enquiry by
the Company, all directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
under review.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects.
The Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on
a going-concern basis, announcements related to inside information
and other financial disclosures. The management of the Group provides
all relevant information and records to the Board enabling it to make
the above assessment and to prepare the accounts and other financial
disclosures.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing
auditing firm of the Company within one year from the date of his ceasing
to be a partner or to have any financial interest in the auditing firm.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with its review of the independence of
auditors, their audit process and also the standard of reports aforesaid.
The Audit Committee made recommendations to the Board and that
there was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
during the year under review.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring that the Group’s
financial statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the
auditors’ report present a true and balanced assessment of the Group’s
financial position, reviewing the Group’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems, and reviewing the Group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices. Other duties of the Audit Committee
are set out in its specific terms of reference which are available on the
Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik
Ngor, Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held to
review the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2017 and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
attendance record of individual members of the Audit Committee are
set out in the table under the section headed “Directors’ Attendance at
Shareholders’ Meetings, Board and Committee Meetings”.

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each
meeting.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee as per the terms of reference
include:

° to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
reports;

. to review financial controls, internal controls and risk management
system;

° to review the Company'’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

° to review arrangements by which employees can raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters in confidence and to ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent investigation
of such concerns and appropriate follow-up actions; and

° to act as the key representative body to oversee the Company’s
relations with the external auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
its duties and has access to independent professional advice when
necessary. The Company’s annual report for the year has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises two
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun.
Mr. Liu Jin also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee
meets at least once a year. During the year, the Remuneration Committee
convened two meetings and all Remuneration Committee members
attended the meetings.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee as set out
in the Committee’s terms of reference are as follows:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

° to determine specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, factors taken into consideration by the Committee
include salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of directors, employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

° to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance with contractual terms
and that such compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for
the Company;
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° to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
such arrangements are made in accordance with contractual terms
and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

o to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service
contracts of directors that require shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee shall be provided with sufficient resources
to enable it to perform its functions and the Remuneration Committee
has right to access professional advice relating to remuneration proposal
when it is considered necessary.

The principle elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
directors and senior management are:

° to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding that director’s own remuneration;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be on a par with
companies with which the Company competes for human
resources;

° to ensure that remuneration packages should reflect the
performance and responsibilities of an individual, as well as the
complexity of work; and

° to ensure that remuneration packages should be structured in
such a way which can provide incentives to directors and senior
management to improve their individual performance.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed performance
and remuneration of directors and senior management and made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerative packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen, Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s website. The Nomination Committee
meets at least once a year. During the Review Period, the Nomination
Committee convened two meetings and all Nomination Committee
members attended the meetings.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee as per the
terms of reference are as follows:

° to formulate nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy;

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individual nominated for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
the succession planning for the Chairman, the CEO as well as the
senior management;

° to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge its
powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;

° to conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
Company’s constitution or imposed by legislation;

° to review the Company’s Board diversity policy and the progress
on achieving the objectives set for implementing the said policy;
and

° to report to the Board on its decisions and recommendations as
and when appropriate and at least once annually.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to enable
the performance of its functions and is allowed to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses where necessary.
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The Nomination Committee performed the following work during the
year:

(i) reviewing the composition of the Board of the Company;

(ii) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(i)  determining the suitability, duties and responsibilities of Mr. Feng
Wen as the Chief Executive Officer.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Review Period, the total remuneration for the audit services
provided by auditors amounted to approximately HK$350,000 (2016:
HK$350,000). Non-audit services of approximately HK$150,000 were
provided by auditors during the Review Period (2016: Nil).

The re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors
of the Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board will therefore be responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions and has adopted a written guideline on corporate
governance functions in compliance with the CG Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance functions are
summarised as follows:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v)  To review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the CG Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training of the
Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of internal controls
and risk management of the Company and to review its effectiveness.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since
the last review, scope and quality of the management’s monitoring of
risks, incidence of significant control failings and identified weaknesses,
and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the Listing Rules.

During the Review Period, the Board has conducted review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group and is
satisfied with the scope and effectiveness of the system. The Board
also conducted review on the adequacy of resources, experience and
qualification of the staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, its training programmes and budget.

During the Review Period, the Company was exposed to market risk for
its available-for-sale financial assets, including the embedded derivatives,
as the Company may not be able to liquidate such investments in time to
meet its cash flow requirements. In response to this situation, the Board
has maintained a portfolio of listed securities and a relatively strong cash
position.

The portfolio of listed securities, classified as financial assets at FVTPL in
the statement of financial position, may be exposed to market price risk.
The Board will continue to monitor the portfolio with an aim to reduce
such risk by diversification.
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In order to safeguard the annual review of the continuing connected
transactions, the Group has in place internal control procedures to ensure
that continuing connected transactions will be conducted in compliance
with the rules. In reviewing the continuing connected transactions, the
Independent non-Executive Directors and the Audit Committee have the
power to request further information, require alternations, modifications or
changes to the terms, with respect to the Group’s continuing connected
transactions. The management will ensure that the Independent non-
Executive Directors and the Audit Committee will be provided with
sufficient information to review the continuing connected transactions.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each financial
period, which should give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group’s results and cash flow for that period. The
directors ensure that the consolidated financial statements for the year
were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards, and will ensure that the publication of which will be
in a timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant
information to its shareholders. The commitments to fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can
be reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company conforms to the best practices
regarding corporate governance. The notice of annual general meeting
and the relevant circular, which are circulated to all shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the holding of the annual general
meeting, set out the details in relation to each resolution proposed,
voting procedures (including procedures for demanding and conducting
a poll) and other relevant information. At the beginning of the meeting,
the chairman of the meeting indicates to the meeting the level of
proxies lodged on each resolution and the balance for and against such
resolution. At the Company’s 2017 AGM, all the resolutions were put to
the vote by poll and Tricor Tengis Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes
were properly counted.
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There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or
the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to propose a resolution may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Where notice of general meeting includes the election of directors of the
Company, any shareholder of the Company may propose the election
of any person as a director of the Company at the general meeting.
Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company, if
a shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director for election as
a director at any general meeting (including the annual general meeting),
the shareholder should lodge a written notice (the “Nomination Notice”)
signed by the shareholder at the head office or Registration Office (as
defined in the Articles of Association) of the Company not less than seven
clear days but not more than 14 clear days before the date of the general
meeting. The Nomination Notice must be accompanied by a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected as a
director.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its
annual and interim reports. The directors, Company Secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management also respond promptly to
inquiries from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to shareholders and investors. The Company
updates shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual and interim reports and
notices, announcements and circulars. The Company’s website
(www.nif-hk.com) provides a communication platform to the public and
the shareholders.

To strengthen its relationships with investors, the Company regularly
meets with analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of
the press and other economic journals.

No significant changes were made to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Review Period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING SCOPE

The Company is an investment company and principally engages in
investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and unlisted companies. As
an investment company, the Company does not directly participate in
the production and operation of its subsidiaries. While actively seeking
to optimise its investment portfolio and maximise shareholder return,
the Company lives up to its corporate social responsibility and strikes a
balance between the interests of stakeholders such as the shareholders
and the community, with the ultimate goal of achieving a sustainable
corporation.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules,
the Company hereby presents its environmental, social and governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Working Environment

Working conditions

Policies on remuneration and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, leaves, equal opportunity, diversity and other fringe
benefits.

The principal place of business of the Group is Hong Kong. The Group
has put in place employment policies and guidelines in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the local governments, including:

o the formulation of wage allocation system according to laws, and
such wages shall not be lower than the minimum wages, if any, for
the respective year as promulgated by the government;

° the provision of social security and fringe benefits in accordance
with the relevant government requirements, such as providing
insurance for employees; and

° the provision of labour protection, labour conditions and protection
against occupational hazards in accordance with the relevant
government requirements on labour protection.
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In addition, the Company’s policies and guidelines on recruitment and
promotion are formulated based on the principles that:

we are an equal opportunity employer;

we are against any act of discrimination on the basis of gender,
age, race, etc.; and

we make decisions relating to engagement and promotion based
on staff/candidate performance.

Remuneration, working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits

Remuneration and benefit packages are determined with reference
to the position, skills, capability and performance of staff;

Remuneration is adjusted based on local regulations on minimum
wages;

Working hours, leaves and other fringe benefits are in line
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with industry practice and/or (if applicable) adjusted based on —BU RSk (MER)RER - ERRFEH
experience, qualifications and seniority of staff; and B R
. An equitable reward system is in place. . B AEREEHE -
During the year under review, there was no material breach of applicable REBEFER - ANQ AN EREERBERENR, 3%
laws and/or regulations. R
Staff breakdown ABUE
A breakdown of the number of the Company’s staff as at 31 December RZE—+tF+ZA=+—BERZZE—X"F+=A
2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows: =t+—B RAREBRABAHSIET:
Staff Directors Total
BT BEx &t
Number (31 December 2017) AB(ZE—tF+=ZA=+—8) 20 6 26
Number (31 December 2016) A (ZE—RF+=-A=+—H) 22 8 30
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Health and Safety

It is the Company’s primary concern to provide its employees with safe
and convenient working environments.

The Company has developed a set of work safety codes covering areas
of environmental hygiene and cleanliness, machine operation, smoking
ban and fire prevention, hazardous materials handling, arrangements in
times of typhoons and rainstorms, as well as response to emergencies,
etc. It also provides training on work safety codes and requires strict
compliance therewith by its employees.

Work-related injuries and fatalities

During the year under review, there were no work-related fatalities.

Occupational health and safety measures

The Company provides suitable working environments to ensure
adequate protection of the health and safety of its staff.

Development and Training
Policies on employee development and training

The Company places a great deal of importance on the development
of the overall ability and professional skills of its staff. It is committed
to providing relevant training opportunities to its staff from time to time
according to their work requirements, so as to boost the competence
and efficiency of staff and hence the Company’s professionalism and
performance.

Environmental Protection

Emission level

Environmental protection has always been a focus of the Company. In
addition to the strict compliance with national regulations, policies and
requirements, the Company also checks and supervises the plants of its
subsidiaries and associates regularly to ensure that the environmental
standards of the plants meet local laws and regulations and that consents
and approvals have been obtained from relevant authorities.

Utilisation of resources

As one of its green initiatives, the Company seeks to minimise resource
consumption. Average consumption of resources is reduced with
advancements in production technology and the implementation of other
effective measures and guidelines.
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Operational Practice

The Company and its subsidiaries and associates have developed an
effective monitoring mechanism to ensure the smooth implementation
of, and compliance with, its strategies and policies regarding operation.
Various measures such as holding management meetings, conducting
site visits, inspecting documents, etc., are adopted to ensure that the
following principles are observed.

Supply chain management

Being an investment management company, the Company engages in
investments in listed or unlisted equity securities. It does not have any
major supplier of products, raw materials or services, nor does it directly
participate in any negotiation between any investee and its supplier.
However, for the purpose of ensuring a certain degree of management of
supply chain risks, the Company maintains close communication with its
investees to allow a better understanding of the operation and production
of those subsidiaries and associates.

Accordingly, the management believes that the investees have adopted
one or more monitoring measures listed below as a part of their supplier
management:

° Raw materials are initially procured in small batches and tests are
conducted for the raw materials of each product to ensure that the
materials meet the local regulations and requirements regarding
chemical contents;

° Raw materials are purchased in bulk only after being confirmed to
be of no quality issues arising during production;

° As a part of the supplier selection process, samples of raw
materials are requested for testing and only those suppliers whose
raw materials are certified as suitable for use in production will be
qualified;

° Quotations are compared to ensure that they are in line with market
rates;

° The procurement process is strictly monitored to ensure against
any breach of laws;

° Contracts will be entered into with approved suppliers to ensure
that the purchase price and quality of the materials are consistent
with those stated in the contracts.
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Product liabilities

The management believes that all its investees are responsible
product and service suppliers who fulfill all of their service and product
commitments and response to their clients’ complaints in a diligent
manner.

Anti-corruption

Being a responsible corporation, the Company strives to eliminate
bribery and corruption across its management and staff. To do so, the
Company actively introduces relevant and current anti-corruption laws
and punishments to its employees. All employees are fully briefed on
the relevant anti-corruption laws and guidelines upon entering into their
employment contracts so as to ensure that they comply strictly with them
and carry out their duties in good faith. The Company closely monitors
the conduct of its staff to prevent wrong-doings amongst the Board, its
senior management and its staff, such as prohibiting transfer of benefits
while considering any company or project investment.

During the year under review, the Company had not been charged for any
corruption within the Board, its senior management and its staff, as well
as its investees and their employees, during their employment.

Corporate Governance Responsibilities

To provide reasonable protection for the interests of minority
shareholders, the Company strictly complies with the Listing Rules.
In addition to maintaining timely disclosures of relevant corporate
information as well as transparency and accountability in its operation,
the Company also conducts internal reviews from time to time in order
to improve its corporate governance. For information on the Company’s
corporate governance, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report”.

The Board advocates a high level of independence so as to make
independent judgments. Therefore, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive directors. The directors believe that all three
of the independent non-executive directors have diversified backgrounds
and experience as well as sufficient calibre and independence to make
independent judgments, provide impartial and professional advice,
evaluate the decisions of the Board, and safeguard the interests of the
minority shareholders.
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Community Involvement

The Company always endeavours to serve the community and therefore
highly respects its corporate social responsibilities. In March 2017, the
Company donated HK$200,000 to Hong Kong International School
for general teaching purposes and the improvement of school facilities,
thereby benefiting its students. The Company has high regard for the
value of education and is therefore delighted to see that a better campus
and excellent teaching is offered to the students. We wish our humble
effort today will reap a bumper harvest of great men for the future society.

For the sake of social betterment, the Company will also identify
charitable, non-profit or educational institutions and foundations that
share its beliefs, and encourage its staff to volunteer for them.

Subsidiaries and Other Investees

The Company has formulated stringent basic internal corporate
governance principles and requirements for its projects/subsidiaries.
It ensures the observance of these principles and requirements by
these projects/subsidiaries through various measures such as holding
management meetings, conducting site visits, inspecting documents,
etc. It also offers necessary support and training in the implementation of
these policies to its subsidiaries and investees from time to time.

For each line of business operation, the Company has adopted different
measures to ensure its respective compliance with the above principles
and guidelines. In respect of the agriculture and forestry development
business, it has adopted a set of principles and guidelines for ecosystem
protection and ensures that the workers are adequately protected and
remunerated, such as having insurance for work injuries and accidents.
In terms of the biological pharmaceutical and regenerative medicine
system and product business, measures have been taken to ensure
safety in its production and research and development processes. For
instance, the research and development and other staff are protected
from fatalities as well as inhaling or being exposed to chemical/hazardous
elements, the products are certified as meeting national safety standards,
and the research and development procedures comply with ethical
standards and guidelines. For the development and building of yachts,
environmental matters of the building process are taken seriously and
green measures such as the reduction of waste and emissions as well as
the recycling of materials has already been implemented.
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The directors have the pleasure in presenting this annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The principal activity of the Company is investment in listed and
unlisted companies.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 27 September 2002.

Business or geographical analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities for
the year is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group together with a description of
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are provided in “Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13
of this annual report. The business review shall form part of this Directors’
Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and the
results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 62 to 64.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year (2016: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Review Period
amounted to HK$200,000 (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 65 and 66 and Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2017, no reserve of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands (2016: approximately HK$16,762,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and there is no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick

Mr. Fong Chi Wah

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Chengming (Retired on 30 June 2017)
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Retired on 30 June 2017)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
Mr. Liu Jin
Mr. Law Tze Lun

In accordance with Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze Lun shall retire as
directors by rotation. Mr. Wong Danny F., Mr. Liu Jin and Mr. Law Tze
Lun, being eligible, offer himself for a re-election as director at the annual
general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Currently, all executive directors have entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of two years. Each of these executive directors
is entitled to his respective basic salary. In addition, in respect of each
financial year of the Company, each of the executive directors is also
entitled to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all executive directors may not exceed 15%
of the audited net profit of the Company (after taxation but before
extraordinary and exceptional items and payment of such bonuses)
in respect of that financial year of the Company. An executive director
is required to abstain from voting and is not counted in the quorum in
respect of any resolution of the directors regarding the amount of the
monthly salary and the discretionary bonus payable to him.

In respect of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, each of them has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company respectively for a term up to the forthcoming annual general
meeting and their appointments will be terminated by the giving of not
less than 14 days’ notice in writing by either party. All directors of the
Company, including independent non-executive directors, are subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Save as disclosed above, no other director has entered into service
agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts are
set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the foregoing, there was no transactions, arrangements or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director
had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBT SECURITIES

Other than those disclosed under the section headed “Interests in Share
Options” below, at no time during the year was the Company a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executive of the
Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of age) to
have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any or its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, directors and other officers
for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices provided that such indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons.

The Company has arranged a Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Policy to provide appropriate coverage for any potential claims against
directors and officers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
below:
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HEAT BB

B Eg7) g BREE RABNED L
Mr. Wong Danny F. Interest of controlled corporation/ 296,338,637 12.34%

Beneficial owner
pasti=l- Srte sy

All of the above interests in the Company held by the directors were long
positions.

Notes:

(1) These represent beneficial interests in shares owned by CCM Asia
Investment Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and the entire issued share capital of which
is indirectly held by Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company. These shares have been charged in favour of
a secured lender.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive or their
associates had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for Directors and
employees of the Group. The share option scheme adopted on 27
August 2007 (the “Old Scheme”) has expired and was replaced by a new
share option scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on
30 June 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). No further option can be
granted under the Old Scheme upon its expiration, but all options granted
previously will remain exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Old
Scheme and the relevant letters of offers to the respective grantees. The
Share Option Scheme had a life of ten years and is due to expire on 29
June 2027.
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, in principle, is to enable the
Company to motivate participants for their significant contributions to the
growth of the Company and to retain and maintain on-going business
relationship with such participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Company. It is important for
the Company to provide them, where appropriate, with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest
in the Company and to reward them for contributing to the Company’s
long-term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

U

(i)

(i

()

48

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any options to be granted under any other scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares in issue
as at the adoption date unless refreshed by the shareholders.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme should
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the share.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant within 28
days from the date of offer of the option. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 30 June 2017.
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EEWmE
Details of movement of the share options during the year under the Share BREE THERERNEAZEFHFBNT
Option Scheme were as follows:
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
Outstanding during during during Outstanding price
at1Jan the Review the Review the Review at 31 Dec at1Jan Exercisable
2017 Period Period Period 2017 2016 Date of grant period
Iy iy Iy
“E-t% “E-tf “E-RE
-A-H REBHE REBHE REB®E +=A=t+-H -A-B2
HATE R e 34 HATE fikE RUEH gid]
(HK) Note 1)
(B7) (Hi1)
Note 2)
(Wiz2)
Directors
Ex
Mr. Wong Danny F. 73,382 - - (73,382) - 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
TREEE b8 2 ZERHET-AZTN\EE
+-A=tNA ZE—+ENAZTAAE
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
3—-F “Z-——FMATNHE
mA+AR ZE—+FNRZTAA
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 73,382 - - (73,382) - 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
RYEkH b8 2 ZERHEF-AZTN\EE
+-A=tNA ZE—+ENAZTAAE
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
3—-F “Z-——FMATNHE
mA+AR ZE—+FNRZTAA
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 73,382 - - (73,382) - 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
hEERE b8 2 ZERHEF-AZTN\EE
+-A=tNA ZE—+ENAZTAAE
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
3—-F “Z-——FMATNHE
mA+AR ZE—+FNRZTAA
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 73,383 = = (73,389) = 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHAEE b8 2 ZERHET-AZTN\EE
+-A=tNA ZE—+ENAZT/A
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
3—-F “Z-——FMATNHE
mA+AR ZE—+FNRZTAA
Mr. Liu Jin 73,382 - - (73,382) - 565  28Nov2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
Btk b8 2 ZERHET-AZTN\EE
+-A=tNA ZE—+ENAZT/A
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
2—-F “Z-——FMATNHE
mA+AR ZZ—+FNAZTAA
2,315,711 - - (2,315,711) -
Resigned directors 220,148 = = (220,148) = 565 28Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
ERIES “BRE “ERLET-ACTNRE
T-RAZ+NB ZZ—t#NAZTRH
1,169,280 - - (1,169,280) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—E2—F “T——FMATN\RZE
mA+NR ZE—+ENAZTAA
Other eligible participants 10,594,080 - - (10,594,080) - 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 2011 t0 26 Aug 2017
AR EReaE 2——f ZZ--fEATN\BE
mA+AR ZZ—+FNRZTRA
Total 14,299,219 = = (14,299,219) =
azt
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.77 - - - -
MEFHTEE 0.77R T
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No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme during the year.

Notes:

In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, (i) a
maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of grant; (i) a
maximum of another 30% options, plus any options being unexercised
in (i), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of total options granted,
are exercisable from 28 November 2008; and (iii) the remaining
40% options, plus any options being unexercised in (i) and (i), are
exercisable from 28 November 2009 to 26 August 2017.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
and the number of new shares to be allotted and issued upon full
exercise if the subscription rights attaching to the outstanding share
options were adjusted to reflect the rights issue which came into effect
on 20 February 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s directors and chief
executive, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights during the Review Period.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the directors, the
following shareholders (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares share capital
EAERATE BT
BREERE B 54 ZEREAE REBD K
CCM Asia Investment Corporation (Note 1) Beneficial owner 296,338,637 12.34%
CCM Asia Investment Corporation ( #7:£1) BEnlEA A
CCM Financial Corporation (Note 1) Corporate owner 296,338,637 12.34%
CCM Financial Corporation ( #1z1) NEEB A
Sino Portfolio International Limited (Note 2) Security owner 296,338,637 12.34%
Sino Portfolio International Limited (#722) ERESERA
Ms. Angela Chen (Note 3) Interest through
controlled corporation 296,338,637 12.34%
Angela ChenZ = ( #1:£3) BRAZERER 2R

All of the above interests in the Company held by shareholders were long
positions.

Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company, is the sole shareholder of CCM Financial Corporation which
in turn is the sole shareholder of CCM Asia Investment Corporation.
CCM Financial Corporation and Mr. Wong Danny F. are therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company held by CCM Asia Investment Corporation under the SFO.

2. Sino Portfolio International Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Seychelles (“Sino Portfolio”), has a security interest in
296,338,637 shares of the Company.

3. Sino Portfolio is wholly-owned by Ms. Angela Chen. Ms. Angela Chen
is therefore deemed to be interested in 296,338,637 shares of the
Company which Sino Portfolio has a security interest in under the SFO.

Other than disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year under review.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted stringent measures for environmental protection in
order to ensure our compliance of prevailing environmental protection
laws and regulations. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental Social and Governance Report” contained in this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays attention to legal and regulatory requirements in
designing its policies and practices. Legal and compliance advisers
will be engaged when necessary to ensure the Group is operated in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are regarded as valuable assets of the Group and
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities
and appropriate internal training are provided to employees. Effective
communications amongst employees are promoted in order to achieve
corporate efficiency.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company’s entire turnover is derived from the Company’s
investment in listed or unlisted equity securities and thus the disclosure
of information regarding to customers and suppliers would not be
meaningful.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Subscription Agreement

The Company and Premium Castle Limited (“Premium Castle”), a
company incorporated under the laws of British Virgin Islands, entered
into a new subscription agreement (the “New Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and Premium Castle has conditionally agreed to issue a convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$18,600,000, being the outstanding
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 under the 2011 Convertible Note
and the outstanding interest in the sum of approximately HK$1,600,000
accrued under the 2010 Convertible Note and the 2011 Convertible Note
(collectively “Debt”), with maturity period of five years and coupon rate of
2% (the “Subscription”). The New Subscription Agreement constitutes
a discloseable transaction for the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules as the applicable percentage ratios as defined under Rule
14.06 of the Listing Rules are more than 5% but less than 25%. The
New Subscription Agreement also constitutes a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the major shareholder of
Premium Castle is Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company, Premium Castle is therefore a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the New Subscription Agreement is
subject to the reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Mr. Wong Danny F., who
is the Chairman and an executive director of the Company and a major
shareholder of Premium Castle, is regarded as having a material interest
in the New Subscription Agreement and therefore he abstained from
voting at the meeting of the Board at which the resolution approving the
New Subscription Agreement was passed and Mr. Wong Danny F. and
his associates were required to abstain from voting on the resolution
approving the New Subscription Agreement passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 February 2014. Details of
the Subscription were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 7
February 2014. The New Subscription Agreement has been approved at
the extraordinary general meeting and was completed on the same day.

Upon completion of the Subscription on 25 February 2014, the obligation
of Premium Castle to pay the Debt has been released and the Debt,
which was previously recorded as current assets of the Company, was
reclassified as financial asset in the Company’s consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Placing Agreement

The Company entered into a placing agreement with Beijing Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) on 6 January 2017 and 28 February 2017
respectively, pursuant to which the Placing Agent had agreed to place
160,000,000 new ordinary shares and 110,000,000 new ordinary shares
respectively on a best effort basis to not less than six independent
investors at the placing price of HK$0.1 per placing share and at the
placing price of HK$0.142 per placing share respectively. The placing
shares were fully taken up and no placing share has been allotted to
the Placing Agent. Mr. Wong Danny F., the Chairman and an executive
director of the Company, holds 84.85% of the shareholdings of the
holding company of the Placing Agent. Mr. Wong Danny F. is also a
director of the Placing Agent and the holding company of the Placing
Agent. Hence, the Placing Agent is an associate of Mr. Wong Danny F.
and is therefore a connected person of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules. The acting as the Placing Agent is a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that the placing commission of 3% on the gross
proceeds of the placing was determined within arm’s length negotiation
between the parties with regard to the prevailing market practice and the
placing commission is on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable.
As the relevant percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) in respect
of the placing commission and the brokerage fees under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules is less than 5% and the total consideration is less than
HK$3,000,000, the transaction constitutes a connected transaction
which is fully exempt from independent shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing
Rules.

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

The Company entered into an Underwriting Agreement with Enhanced
Securities Limited (“Enhanced”) on 21 November 2017 in relation to
the underwriting arrangement in respect of the rights issue. Meanwhile,
Enhanced was also been appointed as the financial adviser of the
Company. Therefore, Enhanced is connected person of the Company
under Chapter 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the payment of the
underwriting commission and the financial advisory fee by the Company
constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The underwriting commission payable to Enhanced was approximately
HK$1,261,187 and the financial advisory fee was approximately
HK$200,000 respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Investment Management Agreement

The investment management agreement dated 1 November 2016 was
entered into between the Company and Avia Asset Management Limited
(‘New Investment Management Agreement”). Under the New Investment
Management Agreement, Avia Asset Management Limited agreed
to provide investment management services to the Company from 1
November 2016 unless and until terminated by either party by serving
not less than 6 months’ notice in writing to the other party with a fixed
management fee of HK$55,000 per month. Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of
the Listing Rules, an investment manager is deemed to be connected
person of the Company. The entering into of the New Investment
Management Agreement with Avia Asset Management Limited
constitutes a continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempted from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Custodian Agreement

Commencing from 11 March 2005, the Company appointed the Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited as its custodian for the provision
of custody services. The Bank of Communications Trustee Limited has
agreed to provide the Company with securities services including the
safe custody and physical settlement of the securities in the investment
portfolio of the Company, and the collection of dividends and other
entitlements in respect of such securities. The custodian agreement
between the parties (the “Custodian Agreement”) will continue be in force
until being terminated by either the Company or the custodian by the
giving to the other party of not less than 90 days’ notice in writing at any
time.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules, a custodian shall be
regarded as a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
provision of services by the Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
under the Custodian Agreement constitutes continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board, including the independent non-executive directors, is of
the view that the above continuing connected transactions have been
entered into (1) on normal commercial terms; (2) on an arm’s length basis;
and (3) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, and
that the terms of the above continuing connected transactions were fair
and reasonable to the shareholders and the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has received written confirmation from its
auditors confirming the matters stated under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors at the date of this annual report,
there is a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises of three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Liu Jin, Mr. Char Shik Ngor,
Stephen and Mr. Law Tze Lun. Mr. Law Tze Lun serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the management, have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including a review of the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 21 November 2017, the Company
proposed to raise approximately HK$42,039,000 (before expenses)
by way of the rights issue of 1,201,130,456 rights shares of HK$0.01
each at a subscription price of HK$0.035 per rights share on the basis
of two rights shares for every one then existing share held, and the net
proceeds of the Rights Issue, after deducting the related expense, will be
approximately HK$40,280,000 was mainly used to repay the principal
amount and interests of Group’s loans including the Citizens Money
Lending Corporation Limited. Details of the rights issue were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 November 2017 and 28
November 2017 and the prospectus of the Company 7 December 2017.

On 2 January 2018, the Company has fully settled the loan entered
with Freeman Opto Money Lending Corporation Limited with cash of
approximately HK$1,580,000.

On 5 Jan 2018, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in respect of sale of diamond
at HK$16,000,000. On 5 Jan 2018, the sale has been fully settled with
cash of HK$16,000,000.

On 8 January 2018, the Company has fully settled the loan entered with
Citizens Money Lending Corporation Limited with cash of approximately
HK$39,233,000.
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Since 29 January 2018, the Company entered into loan agreements with
Medisun Holdings Limited (the “Petitioner”) in an aggregated amount of
HK$2,500,000. The loan was repayable on the date of one year from
the date of loan agreements with interest rate of 12% per annum. On
26 March 2018, the Company received a petition from the Petitioner in
the matter of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provision)
Ordinance from the High Court that the Company may be wound up
by the High Court on the ground that the Company is unable to pay its
debts. The petition was filed against the Company for failure to settle the
sum of approximately HK$7,143,000 (the “Petition”). On 29 March 2018,
the Company received a notice from Carley Company S.A., a creditor of
not less than HK$700,000 (being the amount of outstanding rental) of
the Company, that it intends to appear on the hearing of the Petition to
support such petition. Please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 26 March 2018, 27 March 2018 and 29 March 2018 for further
details of the Petition.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
who will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Danny F.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATIONAL INVESTMENTS FUND LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engage to audit the consolidated financial statements of
National Investments Fund Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis
for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements and as
to whether the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As explained in Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$123,593,000 and a net
cash outflow from operating activities of approximately HK$47,292,000
for the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately HK$49,332,000 and
net liabilities of approximately HK$47,443,000. In addition, on 26 March
2018, the Company received a petition from Medisun Holdings Limited
(the “Petitioner”) in the matter of the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provision) Ordinance from the High Court of The Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “High Court”) that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court on the ground that the Company is
unable to pay its debts of approximately HK$7,143,000 (the “Petition”).
On 29 March 2018, the Company also received a notice from Carley
Company S.A. (the “Creditor”), a creditor of the Company, that it intends
to appear on the hearing of the Petition and to support such Petition.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking certain measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out
in Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the
validity of which is dependent on the outcome of these measures, which
are subject to the following uncertainties, including (i) whether the Group
is able to successfully obtain additional financing as and when required,
the achievability of which depends on the future performance of the
Group; (i) whether the Group is able to implement its operation plans
for control costs and to generate adequate cash flow from operations,
the achievability of which depends on the market environment which is
expected to remain challenging; and (i) whether the Group is able to
successfully negotiate with the Petitioner for an amicable disposal of
the Petition out of the High Court and negotiate with the Creditor for the
settlement of the outstanding balance.

These facts and circumstances, along with other matters as described in
Note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of multiple material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
EMVE S ElIE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and to issue an auditors’ report. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. However, because of the matter described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code

of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBakHMEERKER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—ZT—+F+ - A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it FET FHT
Revenue g 7 2,915 1,785
Other income Ea g A 8 4,525 606
Change in fair value of conversion options ~ RI IR ZE IR NS Z RAEHE 2
embedded in convertible notes NREBEZH (740) (292)
Impairment loss of available-for-sale Al E SR E E 2 R ERE
financial assets (13,868) (18,388)
Impairment loss of other tangible assets HEMBEREE 2 RERIE 17 (1,007) (86)
Impairment loss of other receivable B fh e R IE 2 R B B 18 22 (40,800) -
Other operating expenses Hfh @R (59,203) (70,921)
Finance costs B & Ak AN 9 (15,415) (11,922
Share of result of associates JE(REEE R A A 18 - (15,195)
Loss before taxation BB ATE R (123,593) (114,413)
Taxation I8 10 - -
Loss for the year FAEE 11 (123,593) (114,413)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEa2mmilkes (Ei8)
Items that may be reclassified REREE P B Em k2
subsequently to profit or loss: ==
— Net loss on revaluation of available-for-sale —EffH Al ftHE S REE 2 &
financial assets BFE (12,136) (22,560)
— Reclassification adjustments relating to — AR HEEeMEECE
available-for-sale financial assets o T 13,868 18,388
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEELE
for the year, net of income tax (F518) - EHRFABH 1,732 4,172
Total comprehensive loss for the year FARAEZHEEBEELRE (121,861) (118,585)
Loss for the year attributable to: THZEEMFEAES:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZEN (123,593) (114,413)
Total comprehensive loss for the year THEEEEFEFRAZHEEER
attributable to: ek
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ- DN (121,861) (118,585)
(restated)
(Fe=51)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BEARREE (BL) 15 (4.86) (5.28)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 sE R F4ra s HEk 2 — 8015 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR AR

As at 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FHExT FET
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y RS Rk 16 6,432 14,511
Other tangible assets HthBREE 17 17,583 18,590
Available-for-sale financial assets AHfEESREE 19 88,200 101,000
Conversion options embedded in AIMREBRNE 2 BARE
convertible notes 20 7 747
112,222 134,848
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEHESRERE 19 20,487 18,132
Prepayments, deposits and FERHIE e Rk
other receivables H fib i W sk I8 22 7,428 47,356
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTAE 23 34,794 7,401
62,709 72,889
Total assets EEHE 174,931 207,737
Equity: s
Capital and reserves attributable to RATHEEAEMLBRER
owners of the Company &
Share capital A 29 24,023 21,323
Reserves & (71,466) 22,424
Total equity SRR (47,443) 43,747
Liabilities: 8E&:
Current liabilities REEE
Short-term loans REEN 24 6,833 -
Accrued charges and other payables JERRAEZ REMEMKE 25 104,649 55,011
Obligations under finance leases RE M EAE 26 559 -
112,041 55,011
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A SRR R

As at 31 December 2017 R—_ZE—+tF+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FET

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Promissory notes IS 27 109,310 108,979
Obligations under finance leases RE TR E A 26 1,023 =
110,333 108,979
Total liabilities BEHAE 222,374 163,990
Total equity and liabilities EnkEEAE 174,931 207,737
Net current (liabilities)/assets #E(BE) EERE (49,332) 17,878
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABES 62,890 152,726

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018 and signed on its KEFEN_ZE—\FZAZTLBHERBEUTA

behalf by: TREREE:
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
pa: 12 RTE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 M sE B EiR A B Sk 2 — 800 °
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREEX

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARRENERE
Available-
for-sale
Share financial
option assets equity
Share Share reserve reserve Accumulated
capital premium (Note (i) (Note (ii)) losses Total
THLE
SREE
BRERR Bk
BA& R EE (HEt) (i) 2RER fafF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHEx FEx FEx T TR

Asat 1 January 2016 RZE-rE—A-H 18,023 686,282 2,193 654 (633,542) 73,610
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (114,413) (114,413)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEEE

for the year, net of income tax EMBRAEHR - - - (22,560) - (22,560)
Reclassification adjustments relating to BEARLESREAE L

available-for-sale financial assets ENAEAR - - = 18,388 = 18,388
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAERLE - - - 4,179) (114,413 (118,585)
Placing [ 3,300 89,084 - - - 92,384
Placing expenses RER% - (3,662) - - - (3,662)

As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

RZE-~E+=A=t-ARK

“T—+%-f-H 21,328 771,704 2,193 (3,518) (747,955) 43,747

Loss for the year FRER - - - - (123,593) (123,593)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMZEEE

net of income tax BMBRAER - - - (12,136) - (12,136)
Reclassification acjustments relating to BHARLESHEEY

available-for-sale financial assets ENNEAR - - - 13,868 - 13,868
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ENE/ (BBR)&E

for the year - - - 1,782 (123,599) (121,861)
Share options lapsed BREXN - - (2,1993) - 2193 =
Placing RE 2,700 28,920 - - - 31,620
Placing expenses RER% - (949) - - - (949)
As at 31 December 2017 R=B-tF+=-A=+-A 24,023 799,675 - (1,786) (869,355) (47,443)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_ZT—t&+_A=+—HILFE

Notes: Hiet -

0] Share option reserve relates to share options granted under the i) IR E D EBIEA R R BRI L 28
Company’s share option scheme and which are reclassified to share REERH eRNEREETERENSHEERAR
capital and share premium when the share options were exercised, and RO RE  WHRBRERS S ERRETIEER
to accumulated losses when the share options were lapsed or expired. TEEE -

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve relates to the iy FAHEEEcHEEEEREDERTHEIESR
cumulative gains or losses arising on the change in fair values of BEZANEBEEZE (EREME2EKREER) M
available-for-sale financial assets that have been recognised in other EEZ 2T WESEEER EFENRREME
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss ELEXHEREN > EEBRR S

when those financial assets are disposed or impaired.

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 M sE Rt 4R & B S ¥Rk 2 — &0 o
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_—_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FHExT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCBHESRE
Bank interest income received BYERTTHA B M A 30 20
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HEREERIEAAEET
at fair value through profit or loss IR EmMEE ZFBRIEA 13,365 7,459
Cash payments to acquire financial assets WHER B mRIEA R EET]
at fair value through profit or loss BReemEE RS NIA (12,790) (4,997)
Cash payments to employees LTREBEZH SR (15,647) (15,715)
Cash payments to other suppliers %ﬁ TEMEER 2 fi & FIE (33,650) (32,863)
Interest received from available-for-sale AL EemEEZ
financial assets B U F & 1,400 =
Cash payments to acquire available-for-sale  WEERIHHE S REE ~
financial assets IR BIA 19 - (63,896)
Net cash outflow from operating activities L& £ 2 B &F HFE (47,292) (109,992)
Cash flows from investing activity RETH2EHSRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E Y% &= L& & (1,001) (1,594)
Net cash outflow from investing activity REZFETHZH LK HEE (1,001) (1,594)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEZRERE
Proceeds from placing fi & FT 1S 508 31,620 92,384
Placing expenses fic & B S (949) (3,662)
Proceeds from rights issue TE R U ER 2 AR A4S SR8
received in advance 42,039 -
Rights issue expenses paid in advance RIS 2 AR R =2 (1,661) -
Repayment for obligations BEmMERSEAE
under finance leases 89 (526) -
Proceeds from short-term loans HHE R Z TS HE 35 8,170 85,000
Repayment for short-term loans EEEEHER - (61,218)
Interest paid EXNEIESE (3,007) (1,936)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEEZBZRERAFE 75,686 110,568

BRREELSAER DT 2017F 5 67



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MAERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILtFE

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBEEEEE M
cash equivalents R )R8 27,393 (1,018)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzReRkRE£EEER
at the beginning of the year 7,401 8,419
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2ESRBALEEER
at the end of the year 34,794 7,401
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRkREEEER
cash equivalents HEeRz oM
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHE % 34,794 7,401

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated BEMT 2 B sk Rt F4R A B sk 2 — 81 °
financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &= —

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 28 June 2002 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its substantial shareholder is CCM
Financial Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The principal activity of the Group is investment in listed and
unlisted companies. Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at 20/F., Octa Tower, 8 Lam Chak Street, Kowloon Bay,
Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 27
September 2002.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the HKICPA, and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency
of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

WG ERER M ot

AN =1

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_ZT—t&+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

70

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are discussed in Note 4.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESHHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued) (b) mEEE ()
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN R BHREM S  IRAREBERE
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 ZHABEBE 2 ABREERAALEER
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value EZABBHAERE SEZN  ARE
measurements are observable and the significance of the B 200 EAEFEIR  F2RHEIR
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are SRR -

described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
incurred a loss of approximately HK$123,593,000 (2016:
approximately HK$114,413,000) and a net cash outflow
from operating activities of approximately HK$47,292,000
(2016: approximately HK$109,992,000). As at 31
December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$49,332,000 (2016: net current assets
of approximately HK$17,878,000) and net liabilities of
approximately HK$47,443,000 (2016: net assets of
approximately HK$43,747,000). In addition, on 26 March
2018, the Company received a petition from Medisun
Holdings Limited (the “Petitioner”) in the matter of the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provision)
Ordinance from the High Court of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court on the ground that
the Company is unable to pay its debts of approximately
HK$7,143,000 (the “Petition”). On 29 March 2018, the
Company also received a notice from Carley Company S.A.
(the “Creditor”), a creditor of the Company for not less than
HK$700,000 (amount of outstanding rental), that it intends
to appear on the hearing of the Petition and to support such
Petition.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_ZT—t&+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

72

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that might cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
the Group may be unable to realise the Group’s assets
and discharge the Group’s liabilities in the normal course of
business.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will be able
to repay the outstanding promissory notes and interest
payables and be able to finance its future working capital
and finance requirements. Certain measures have been
taken to manage its liquidity needs and to improve its
financial position which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

1. The Group will negotiate with the Petitioner for an
amicable disposal of the Petition out of the court and
negotiate with the Creditor for the settlement of the
outstanding rental.

2. The Group will seek to obtain additional financing
including but not limited to rights issue, open offer and
placing of the new shares.

3. The Group will implement operation plans to control
costs and generate adequate cash flows from the
Group’s operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

Whilst the Group is taking measures to preserve cash and
secure additional finance, the following material uncertainties
exist:

1. The Group may not be able to negotiate with the
Petitioner for an amicable disposal of the Petition out
of the court and may not be able to enter settlement
agreement with the Creditor. The Group’s ability to
successfully negotiate with the Petitioner and the
Creditor is dependent upon various factors, including
but not limit to the future performance of the Group.

2. The Group may not be able to obtain the financial
support. The Group’s ability to successfully obtain
additional financing is dependent upon the future
performance of the Group.

& The operation plans to control costs and generate
adequate cash flow from operations may not be
effectively implemented and future performance and
cash flows in respect of operating activities may not
be in line with the assumptions. The achievability of
the plans is dependent upon the market environment,
which is expected to remain challenging in the near
future.

These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of
multiple material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

iR e
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZ=ZT—tHF+-A=+—HILFE

AN =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

74

(b) Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by the management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the abovementioned plans and measures, the Group would
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESTHHEME (&)

(c) Basis of consolidation mEREEE

(c)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

76

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group'’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—ZT—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FTESHBRHE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c) HREIRBEE (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

EAKBEREZHMBEAR 2GR &
ROIBEBREZRAAREBEREMIRERE
BLZARBEZBBERHZMBEARE
E(EEBE)REBEZENEESRR
EEER R 2 ZREFA B R AR EE
TREBEEXER -MAELAREMEE
WaERARZM B ARz 2B iR
AREBEHELEZWE R R HEBEEEX
BEZBERABERZTAAR (BEHD
BERGIBRZERTEMBREE
AIFRFIRR, Ao fF 2 5 — Rz R - MK
EEHIEE A TR R AT B A B 2 E
BREZARBEENREFT A EL
SFIOWETTEL R B 5T BRI BF 5 (R V) 2 e
Rz ARBE X (WER)IIHEDNS
BRARBERARHAAEERZREZK
Ko

BERREEL AR DT 2017F & 77



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ERE SRR EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZ=ZT—tHF+-A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination

78

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. FTESTHHEME (&)

(d) Business combination (Continued) XBa6t (&)

(d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date. Measurement period cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

80

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Business combination (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill

(f)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUSs”)
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

82

(f)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

84

(f)

(9)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvement, furniture and fixtures, office equipment,
computer and motor vehicles, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to its location and working
condition for its intended use. Expenses incurred after
item of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repair and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the
cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of assets and as a
replacement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE - =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvement 33%
Furniture and fixtures 10-50%
Office equipment 20%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Art works and diamonds

Art works and diamonds are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Art works and diamonds are derecognised upon disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R KRR
— {gaEqr = B =50 |ENlEEE)E

2. FTESTHHEME (&)

(9) M% BEKKE (H&E)

FERSENE BERRBZEH
ERFRNEREFE  UMEKAE
EHEFBREE - FETESARBZE
BEERMT:

TEMEEE
REMREE 10-50%
FENE ] 20%

i 50%
E 20%

33%

W% BMERREEE SN 2AE
RERAR BZEBE ZKATRAE
ERNZEHOTRHE ME@EMN S
EORERE-

AEFERS2HRARBRAKER
AERFRARTES L YEHEE P
o

EWE- -KERREER B EHEHE
TERBEFREEREELEN:

B ERERRRZIE B - 15 % - B K&

T8 B & R EE 2 T ek s B8 Th iR

iﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%fklﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&?%ﬁZ%%ﬁﬁ
7 WM B R R

(hy fmREAL
17 @ R 38 IR AAS R 2 3R E B 1R 5
EEQ

BMAREBONHERZEER &I
BREEMREE Z E K msEiE (R
HEMRBRIEFHEZEE RSB Z
ZRRRTE) NI ERZIA B B AR
MR °

BRREELSAER DT 2017F 5 85



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IR RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ=_—Z

2.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”"), available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at

FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

88

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(@) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are
traded in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange
gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary
asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits
and other receivables and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

90

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017

2.

TEEHHREEE (&)

(i)

TIA (&)

THEE (&)
EHEEZHBE

EREE(RBRERRRAREBEIIKE
oM BN E 2RPIRT E~T BRED
R-EREBEBRBTEREZMBFARRK
ReREANSERSBREEREE
Z-HEEZHEEMMIEER ZT R
BESWRGR/HERRE:-

RAREERTKEMS BHFIZAR
BEARxEHEREK AR SRE
ZEBER-

ERMAEMEREE REZTBE
R

s ETAIRZHFHABEVHR
B

o BN (MREBHHERNERAEN
) K

e  EBRAREBAEKESHKEIET
MEEH: 3

s RUBRHEMERZEMEERE
TEEET

RIREERANINRZEREENS 7
HE R R BB 18 & %R LA & 22 BR Tl & 78 £
ReMEEZRERAN RN 2EFHR
KReREZRELEZRTE-

RIERARZEMEEM S REE
BeRNEERmeRERENUSRE
ERF TS L REERAETRRASR
EvREZEZRAE-FRREBET
FRERBREELD -



For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ=_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt
securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_ZT—t&+_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including accrued charges and
other payables, short-term loans and obligations under
finance leases) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

94

(i

@)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables.

Revenue represents dividend income from securities
investments, bank interest income, other interest/dividend
income from financial assets and net gain/loss on financial
assets at FVTPL.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i. Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's rights to receive payment have
been established.

ii. Interest income from financial assets including
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which are the
rates that exactly discounts and the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

if. Net gain/loss on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant
contracts are executed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

96

0

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

0

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

98

0

(m)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Impairment of tangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of tangible assets other than

(n)

goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

100

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group has participated in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Group. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme and are not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the MPF Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognised as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled
share-based payments transactions are set out in Note 37.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZEZZT—tF+-_A=+T—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Equity-settled share-based payments

(]

102

transactions (Continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Leasing

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE -

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

U

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to
the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employees are
also related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &EHZE_—Z

2.

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties transactions (Continued)
(o)  (Continued)

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(o)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

106

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

0} Classification of assets leased to the Group Assets
that are held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(u)

(v)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZEZZT—tF+-_A=+T—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases. Where the
Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 2(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(m).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(w) Segment reporting

108

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-—E—+HF+-A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following amendments (the “amendments to HKFRSs”) issued
by the HKICPA, which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed:
(i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i)
the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in Note 35. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in Note 35, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-—ZE—+tF+-_A=+—HILEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERAFIIRKZEIETBHER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING E£EA([FAMBEREZEAR])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) (#&)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet CHEMERMRER BB BERELE

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

J

\
P

AREE AR T B A AT B 28 M M MR AR

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective: ] RIS B B 53R & %R
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ERMBREER () —E-AFE_Z—+FEH
2015-2017 Cycle? ZERRBREENEE
it

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

BREMBRE
(&%)

BB

BRINXAR AN B R E

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BRMBREERELE  RREBEMBREENESR
Instruments with HKFRS 4 (5x) [REBEHR—HERS
Insurance Contracts’ BB EERENR (&
BIA]
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ EERBRELANES: SRIA
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)  Prepayment Features with Negative BRI HREERNENE REERFERAHE

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Compensation?
Sale or Contribution of Assets

(k)

BAMBREEREI0% R

REEEHBENRHAED

(Amendments) between an Investor and its BB ER 285 X HMBEHEREA?

Associate or Joint Venture® (Bk)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB REERESE RATEANZKE
Customers’

HKFRS 15 (Amendments) ~ Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue BRMBREEREISS BERAUTREENE15%
from Contracts with Customers’ (Ex) [REEFPEH 2 M

HKFRS 16 Leases? EERBREENF 6T HE

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? AR BREER ST 1 Ba Ly

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates B ER 285 REE DR KA EARINRE
and Joint Ventures? (&) Ew’

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’

Transfers of Investment Property’

BEGHERF265;
(k)

BB GFHERIE405%
(Ex)

(EREBMBREERFES
#(ZF-ENFE-F—RN
R 2~

BRRANE

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Ak (BREMBHRERE  IMNERFHRBHRE
Advance Consideration’ RE®) —ZBE2OR
K (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 5% (BRUBHRERE FEHITHETE 2 EE
Treatment? £8g) —RBERR
110 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined. Early adoption is permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, new rules
for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial
assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to adopt
the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate
comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the Company
have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as follows:

Classification and measurement

The Group expects to irrevocably designate those unlisted equity
securities currently classified as available-for-sale as at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Fair value gains and losses on these instruments will no longer be
recycled to profit or loss on disposal. Impairment losses on equity
securities will no longer be recognised in profit or loss but rather in
other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

112

An exception from the general requirement of full gain or
loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10 for the
loss control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method.

New guidance has been introduced requiring that gains or
losses resulting from those transactions are recognised in
the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly,
gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement at fair
value of investments retained in any former subsidiary that
has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28:

o The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that do
not constitute a business.

° A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets that
constitute a business between an entity and its associate
or joint venture must be recognised in full in the investor’s
financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should be
accounted for as a single transaction.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

3.

P& P #T =] K AR 5] & 78 B A% R
’(%Zi—’i‘i)ﬂu (TERMBREER])
IIE

BERVBHREENE10RREESS
ERE28H 21BN [ REEHRBE
RAXNEETLEZHHEEL ELR
At (#&)

BB G ERFE285 2 ER] -
e FHEREEMENFHASELEET

RHFELEBRBEZRECE] REREY
TR —BXKZEERR-

el

e CEA-EHMAT BEREEEBRZAR
FEEEWMETTIERS MASE
EBK—BER REBEBLAZE
RIEEHE M BEHRRDHER -

A,

NS

e HE-BERTE ERFEFERNBUIZT
HEXBRAZEERGBK —HEYK
EEERE—XHAMK-

ARPERRY EABTEYBRSERE10
SR BEB G ERIE8R . ZFER TS
AEBGEMBRRELEATE -

ERUBBEEAEISRE/ KEEF
=y o4 &)

BEPBRELENFISRAEREL —EE
—MEA RN URRKREEFAN 2 WS-
BB B WEERIE155F E L - BRRER
WARERIES BREB G ERFE18 /4L
A BEGHERNEIE [EZEL ) AR

BRREELSER DT 2017F 5 113



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IR RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

114

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group has
identified the following areas which are expected to be affected:

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in Note
2(k). The directors of the Company have assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and does not expect a significant impact on the
recognition of revenue based on the existing business model of the
Group as at 31 December 2017.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting treatment
of leases and will in the future no longer allow lessees to account
for certain leases outside the statement of financial position.
Instead, all long-term leases must be recognised in the statement
of financial position in the form of assets (for the rights of use) and
lease liabilities (for the payment obligations). Short-term leases
with a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of low-
value assets are exempt from such reporting obligations. The
new standard will therefore result in recognition of a right-to-
use asset and an increase in lease liabilities in the statement of
financial position. In the income statement, rental expenses will
be replaced with depreciation and interest expense. The new
standard is not expected to be applied by the Group until the
financial year ending 31 December 2019. HKFRS 16 will primarily
affect the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. At 31
December 2017, the Group had non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$13,377,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16
the majority of operating lease commitments will be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets. The lease liabilities would subsequently
be measured at amortised cost and the right-of-use assets will be
depreciated on a straight-line basis during the lease term.
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3.

116

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the other new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is
not yet in a position to state whether the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 2, management is required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations are
that management has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B BT IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 when determining
whether an investment in available-for-sale financial assets is other
than temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of
an available-for-sale financial asset is less than its cost, and the
expected time span the Group will hold on to this investment.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for other receivables
resulting from the inability of the debtors to make the required
payments. The Group bases the estimates on the ageing of the
other receivables balance, receivables creditworthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the
receivables were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher
than estimated.

Estimated impairment of interests in associates

In determining whether there is an impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows to be
generated by the associates. The amount of the impairment

loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the interests in associates and the share of the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the
associates. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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4.

118

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
tangible assets

Determining whether property, plant and equipment are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
property, plant and equipment have been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The Group tests annually
whether the assets have suffered any impairment. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is determined based
on value in use calculations which require the use of assumptions
and estimates.

Determining whether other tangible assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the fair value less cost to disposal to which
other tangible assets have been allocated. The recoverable value
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the assets. Impairment loss has been
made if the recoverable amounts of the other tangible assets were
below their carrying amounts. Details of the recoverable amount
calculations are disclosed in Note 17.

Fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible notes

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of the convertible notes subscribed
by the Group and are measured at fair value using the binomial
option pricing model at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period. The debt element of the convertible notes is
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies, accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant judgment is
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of the
business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in active market is determined by valuation techniques.
Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is determined
by independent valuers with reference to the market value of
underlying net assets. Valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data and make assumptions
that are primarily based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. Note 19 provide detailed information about
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives
are estimated at the time the asset is acquired based on historical
experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as
well as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market
demands. The Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Going Concern

As disclosed in Note 2(b), the directors of the Company have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis as per following reasons:

(1)  The Group will negotiate with the Petitioner for an amicable
disposal of the Petition out of the court and negotiate with
the Creditor for the settlement of the outstanding rental.

(2)  The Group will seek to obtain additional financing including
but not limited to rights issue, open offer and placing of the
new shares.

(8)  The Group will implement operation plans to control costs
and generate adequate cash flows from the Group’s
operations.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

(b)

120

Categories of financial instruments

5.

TRMTAREFARER

(a)

@I AER
2017 2016
=2—+tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET

Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 108,687 119,132
Conversion options embedded in MR ERAN S 2 ke

convertible notes 7 747
Loans and receivables BN ERFE (B

(including cash and cash equivalent) ReRREFEIER) 41,685 54,338

150,379 174,217

Financial liabilities =R
At amortised cost TR SR A AN 222,374 163,990

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
available-for-sale financial assets, conversion options
embedded in convertible notes and loans and receivables.
The main purpose of holding these financial instruments is to
generate short-term appreciation gain and gain from trading
of these financial instruments. The Group has other financial
assets and liabilities such as other receivables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-—E—+HF+-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

5. TRIARELARERERE (F)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) cHEAKREEEEREE (&)

and policies (Continued)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices.

Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed
and measured. Details of sensitivity analysis for foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk are set out below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial
instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group carries out its business mainly
in Hong Kong and all of the transactions are denominated
in HK$. The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in HK$, except certain bank balances are
denominated in United States dollars (‘US$”). As Hong Kong
dollar are pegged to USS$, it is assumed that there would
be no material currency risk exposure between these two
currencies. The Group does not have any formal hedging
policies.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
the Group’s variable interest-bearing bank balances, short-
term loans, obligations under finance leases and promissory
notes. The exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is minimal.
The Group did not enter into interest rate swap to hedge
against its exposures.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk related
to the Group’s interest-bearing available-for-sale financial
assets.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

122

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continuead)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to fair value interest rate risk at the reporting
date:

If the fair value interest rate had been 50 basis points (2016:
50 basis point) higher or lower and all other variable held
constant, the Group's:

o Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve would
increase or decrease by approximately HK$102,000
(2016: HK$91,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group has no exposure to interest rate on financial
liabilities except for the promissory notes.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale financial assets or as financial assets at
FVTPL. To manage its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-—E—+HF+-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. £RIAREXREKRERE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date:

If the equity prices had been 5% higher or lower:

° Loss before taxation for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 would have no change.
This is mainly due to no change in fair value of held for
trading investments.

° Available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve would
increase or decrease by approximately HK$5,434,000
(2016: HK$5,957,000). This is mainly due to change in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to price risk has increased during the
year mainly due to the increase in investments in available-
for-sale financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is bank balances and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group and the
Company also have credit policies in place and exposures
to credit risks regards other receivables are mentioned on an
ongoing basis.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Company does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

124

and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. For
non-derivative liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
mEEH
BHRF=E

%

5. TMTAREFARARERE (H)

(b) TEEREEERERIE (&)

Within
1year
~ER

HK$'000
TR

REE L E R

EXeRAEERDESERZIERR
T YERYEEZRDESRRER
R NEEAKEZES FHERH
B2 RnPpEERER-

TRFAVNAEERESHABZHRTA
ME(BEIARERRBE SRR MG
TREEABABRERZFHONA) ©
SOETTAERENS ARSI RRBRIRE
AEBAHBERERZZRFAHFEZ
cRABRURRERE-FHIRE

BAERAGHEME -
Total Total
2to Over5 undiscounted carrying
5 years years amount amount

WEERF BBLFE AMRAR ARELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TERL

2017 —E-tf
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ #fT4¢RMEE

Accrued charges and other payables  FE{T RISl E At e 500B - 62,610 - - 62,610 62,610
Short-term loans RAER 12 6,833 - - 6,833 6,833
Obligations under finance leases RMEHEAE 2.36 619 1,081 - 1,700 1,582
Promissory notes ST 5.35 - 185,000 - 185,000 109,310

70,062 186,081 - 256,143 180,335
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

MEFH

BIRA =

%

5. ERMIEREARABEE (&)

(b) SEEREEERRIE (&)

ABEEEE (H)
Total Total
Within 210 Over5  undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years years amount amount
—E8  WERLE BBELF ARRAE LFEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET THET THET

2016 —ERE
Non-derivative financial liabilities T EeRmBE
Accrued charges and other payables  FE{ 33 J EL i fE (5708 - 55,011 - - 55,011 55,011
Promissory notes ESTES 5.35 - 175,000 - 175,000 108,979
55,011 175,000 - 230,011 163,990
(c) Fair value estimation (c) AREEMF

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices
and ask prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input. For an option-based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option
pricing model (for example, the binomial option pricing
model).

(iii)
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

126

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values except for the promissory notes.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. 2R TAREARREKRERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AABEEME (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REGEMBERRERERZAAEEE
consolidated statement of financial position (#&)
(Continued)
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—E—tF F1R $28 53R X
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Financial assets SREE
Conversion options embedded ARAREBENE 2 ARk E
in convertible notes - - 7 7
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE
Unlisted debt securities I EmERE S - - 20,487 20,487
Unlisted equity securities EEMBRAES - - 88,200 88,200
- - 108,694 108,694
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—ENF EE Fom E3M G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TR AT
Financial assets SREE
Conversion options embedded ARREBNE 2 AR E
in convertible notes - - 747 747
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESHEE
Unlisted debt securities I EERES - - 18,132 18,132
Unlisted equity securities I ETRAE 5 - - 101,000 101,000
- - 119,879 119,879
During the reporting period, there were no transfer of fair MRE2MEPA - FAAREF24R < A I AR
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no AABEFE  BEE ASEHEIR -

transfer into or out of Level 3.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. 2@ TEAREARBERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AREEME (E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CHEEFIRAAEBEFTEZHER
of financial assets

Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted embedded in
equity debt convertible
2017 securities securities notes Total
e FEm  AERREE
“E—tE IR % BXES REzBRE a5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TEr TER TER
Opening balance FHE S 101,000 18,132 747 119,879
Galns or losses recognised in: RTFIE A #ER 2 B sk
BE:
— profit or loss —B# (13,868) 1,691 (740) (12,917)
— other comprehensive loss —-Ht2EEE 1,068 664 - 1,732
Closing balance FIREEGL 88,200 20,487 7 108,694
Conversion
options
Unlisted Unlisted  embedded in
equity debt convertible
2016 securities securities notes Total
FEm EEm  AREREE
—E—RE R EH BRESR RNERRE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FTET THET TET
Opening balance F L 59,344 17,004 1,039 77,387
Gains or losses recognised in: RT51IE B #ER 2 g s
18
— profit or loss —B# (18,388) 1,448 (292) (17,232)
- other comprehensive loss —Hib2EEE (3,852 (320) - (4,172)
Purchases EE 63,896 - - 63,896
Closing balance FiREH 101,000 18,132 747 119,879
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-—E—+HF+-A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

The gains or losses included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
years mainly related to recognition of interest income,
change in fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible notes, disposal and impairment loss of available-
for-sale financial assets.

The gains and losses included in other comprehensive
income for the current year related to the fair value change in
unlisted equity securities and unlisted debt securities held at
the end of the reporting period and are reported as changes
of “available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve”.

5. TMTARELARARERE (HF)

(c)

D REEMAE (&)

EHEEEIRAAEETEZHIE
(#)

SAAERFEEFRABa R EMEH IS
R2WaERBERTIEEARERN B WK
A ABMEZEEAEZBREZARE
BEEY HEAHLESRMEERER
BEEE-

EF AR 4 R At 2 T RS 2 2k T RS9
TYELA 2 IREDRATHE I b IR R
FETEGESZ AR BEEHAR-
MEERBER 7KL EEBAEA
ECTAPE DEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. @I AREAXARMERE (E)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AREEME (E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CHEEFIRAAEETEZEHIER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities rEEBHeREEREBRBAERSE
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting REHARBRAABENE - TRIEHWM
period. The following table gives information about how the ErzSemiERERmBBEANEE
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities (FFRIRATA 2 HERDT R ASER) 2
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and AR}
inputs used).
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RT3IRHZ2AEE hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 RRERBR
EREE ZE-tF+ZBZ1-H ZE-~%¥+ZA=t-A MEEZR ITRARE EXTUBERAUE
1) Conversion options embedded  Conversion options embedded ~ Conversion options embeddedin ~ Level 3 Binomial option pricing ~ The expected share price volatiity is 35.00% (2016
in convertible notes classified in convertible notes issued convertible notes issued model Note () 65.00%) with reference to 1.15-year (2016: 2.15-
as financial assets at FVTPL by Premium Castle Limited by Premium Castle Limited year) historical weekly volatilties of comparable
Note 20) (Note (1) - HK$7,000 (Note (1)) - HK8747,000 companies, a risk-free rate of 0.86% and arisky rate
0f9.37% (2016: a risk-free rate of 1.09% and arisky
rate of 10.80%).
The fair value measurement is posttively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2017,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 8.51%
(2016: 9.71%), and it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease of
10% in the credit spread would increase/ decrease
the fair value of the option by approximately
HK$200/ HK$300 (2016: HK$16,000/HK$17,000).
) PEANBEZEZALEE  HPremium Castle Limited®/T  FPremium CastleLimted®/72 234 ZEABETEEY  BEREREAS00%(ZF—7F:65.00%) /3
I eRAEZMARE  ZARRFBAZZARE AARZENZ 2 AkE (Hritw) BRABUBAR 21155 (ZF—AF: 215
BRazaRE (fit) () - 7,007 (At — 747,007 £)BEBRERE BRERTIZ086%RARRT
£937% (25— 5F: ERRFIE1 00%R AR
BAI%Z1080%) -
MEEREERSAAEAER K-+
F+ZA=+-H fERAEREERS51%
(B35 :971%) - ALt RERT
2 EESEEN/ BM0%NSEREREAL
{EMESEN/ WD 41000 T, /3008 7 (23— R
16,0007 7C,/17,000%7C) °
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. 2@ T EAREARBERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AArEEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CHEEFIRAAEBEETEZEHER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Fair value as at ; ; ;
Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RT3IERZALEE hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 fRERLR
EREE ZB-tF+ZBZt-H ZE-F+ZA=1-R MEESR TEHARE EATUREGARE
2)  Unlisted equity securities 0.49% equity investment in Co- ~ 0.72% equity investment in Level 3 Market approach The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
classified as available-for-sale Lead Holdings Limited (Note Co-Lead Holdings Limited (Note fvij) are considered in the valuation to reflect the
financial assets (Note 19) i) - HK$13,700,000 (Note fj) - HK$15,500,000 condition that there are premium or discount on ts
stock price and its book value as at valuation date.
Discount for lack of marketability, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities in
simiar industries at 35.00% as at 31 December
2017 (2016: 35.00%). If the discount rate was
5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of unlisted
equity securities would decrease/ increase by
approximately HK$1,100,000/HK$1,000,000
2016: HK$1,200,000).
) PEAUMHEESLHREEZ  RCo-Lead Holdings Limited  1Co-Lead Holdings Limited EXH 5 (W) HEERWALRRATEE KRRIEER
FLmhRAES (Hat19) 2049%RARE LOTRAEE (i) HEERERERELMEBINRLER

(B2) - 137000008%  —155000005 7

REE-tF+-A=1t-H 2RENTEL
TER/REETHeMERAN I TEA
35.00% (=5 —73% : 35.00%) TR LF
/TH5% MAAAESRERE B3 L
BRAZE RESEERD /L M1,100000
FTT,/1,000,00087% (= F—7VE :1,200000%

)
3.35% equity investment in 5,06% equity investment in Level 3 Market approach The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
Freeopt Holdings Limited Freeopt Holdings Limited (Note fvij) is considered in the valuation to reflect the condition
(Note (i) - HK$15,400,000 (Note (i) - HK$20,700,000 that there are premium or discount on its stock price

and ts book value as at valuation date.

Discount for lack of marketabilty, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities in
similar industries at 35.00% as at 31 December
2017 (2016: 35.00%). If the discount rate was
5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of unlisted
equity securities would decrease/ increase by
approximately HK$1,100,000/HK$1,200,000
(2016: HK$1,600,000).

T Freeopt Holdings Limitedz /1 Freeopt Holdings Limited 3R g (i) HEZRAALRARZMER HRBAEER
335%RARE Z50B%RARE (Hat HEEREREEEAMRESNRZER

(K32 (i) -15,400,00038 7T () -20,700,00057C

RoE—tE+-B=1t-R S2RENGEL
mEEREETH MERRE 2ITRA
36.00% (ZF—7vE : 35.00%) TR Lt
/TH5% MAAAEGRERS I3 L
RAES 2 RESERAD /L MEN,100000
*;%;*L/w,zoo,ooo?ﬁ (277 1,600,000
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Fair value as at
Financial assets WFSIBH2ALRE
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
SHEE ZB-tF+ZBZ1-H ZE " F+ZA=1-R

0.59% equity investment in
Freewill Holdings Limited
(Note (iif) - HK$1,840,000

0.54% equity investment in
Freewill Holdings Limited
(Nots (i) - HK$12,500,000

TRFreewill Holdings Limited:2
059%RARE (Hii))
1,840,000/ 7T

TFreewil Holdings LimitedZ
0.54%RA%E
(AHi) 12,500 000 T

0.88% equity investment in
Joint Global Limited
(Note (i) - HK$700,000

0.78% equity investment in
Joint Global Limited
(Note fiv) - HK$1,100,000

A Joint Global Limited:20.88% 5 Joint Global Limited20.78%
RARE (A2 i) - 700,000 Hxli}xé‘(/ﬁ?(/v/)
BT -1,100,000% 7T
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5. TRTAREXERERE (&)

() DREEME (&)

EREEFIRAAEBETABZHE

(#4)
Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
fRERTR
DAEESSE TERABE
Level 3 Market approach
(Note fiij)
£3R s (i)
Level 3 Market approach
(Note (i)

F3h sk (et

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBRBALE

The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
is considered in the valuation to reflect the condition
that there are premium or discount on its stock price
and ts book value as at valuation date.

Discount for lack of marketabilty, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entties in similar
industries at 35.00% as at 31 December 2017
(2016: 35.00%). If the discount rate was 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of unlisted equity securies
would decrease/ increase by approximately
HK$140,000 (2016: HK$1,000,000).

EZEAAL AR ZTRE A RBREER
HEHREREREAMREINEZER

REE—+tF+-A=t-H 2RENAELD
aﬁﬂzwgmzfﬁmﬁﬁz #£35.00%
(2% :3500%) - IR E L7/ TR
5% MAA LS EHTE ﬁllittmﬁ’iﬁ
$2ERLEER D/ EMA1400003T (=%
—7vE 11,000,000 7C) ©

The price to book ratio of the comparable companies
is considered in the valuation to reflect the condtion
that there are premium or discount on fts stock price
and its book value as at valuation date.

Discount for lack of marketabilty, determined by
reference to the share price of listed entities in similar
industries at 35.00% as at 31 December 2017
(2016: 35.00%). If the discount rate was 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of unlisted equity securities
would decrease/ increase by approximately
HK$100,000/HK$NI (2016: HK$100,000).

EZEAALRARZTRE ARBREER
HEEREREEEAMEEINEZER

RIE-tE+ZA=t-H 2RENTELT
BB REETHZ DR 2T ASS.00%
(ZZ—~F:3500%) - TR E L7t/ T
5% MATE LS EETE Bl EmRAE
F2EEETHH D/ EMATI00000E T/ FrE
70 (ZF—7N% 100,007 °
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSAND CAPITAL 5. 2@ T EAREARBERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) AArEEME (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements CHEEFIRAAEBEETEZEHER
of financial assets (Continued) (#&)

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets RT3IERZALEE hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
31 December 2017 31 December 2016 fRERLR
EREE ZB-tF+ZBZt-H ZE-F+ZA=1-R DABESSE TERABE EATUREGARE
8% equity investment in Smart 8% equity investment in Smart Role  Level 3 Comparable sales Prices for each species were taken from on-site
Role Limited (Note () Limited Note (1) approach research and interview, official construction cost
- HK$56,560,000; - HK$51,200,000; (Note (i) journals, local practitioners, and forestry products

industry information in the PRC from various
websites in the public domains. No allowances
for transportation was considered as these costs
are normally paid by the buyer. However, the
referenced prices adopted are after allowance for
the uprooting and loading. ff the prices parameters
was 5% higher/lower while al other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of unlisted
equity securities would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB35,000,000/ RMB35,000,000
(2016: RVB34,000,000/RMB35,000,000).

Reasonable recovery rates were applied to allow
for losses before and during harvesting for each
species at the representation of the appointed
personnel of the Group's management. ff the
recovery rates were 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carying amount of
unlisted equity securities would increase/ decrease
by approximately RMB4,300,000/ RMB4,300,000
(2016: RMB42,000,000/ RMBA43,000,000).

FASmart RoleLimited 28% A& 7 Smart RoleLimited 2 8%/ 2 £3% TERBHEE KHARE, BENREEWRERGH EARE
RE (i) -56,560000% (M) 512000007 : (Hiztt) AR S ERALARTRARRE 2 HE
bk WERTEER BRESER—RBEH

HrELREEER AN FRASZEEN
RERRERESER - NERSH LT/ TH
5% MRS RETE Al ERRAE
(2RESBHEN/ A AR 35,000,000
7o/ ANE%35,0000007 (ZF—~%: ARE
34,0000007z,/ A% 35,000,0007C) °

FEEASEEBER Iz AR GRAACER
ARREE pEERRERARERUKEZ
AR 2Bk W BR 7/ R 8%
BEMSYRERE B L TRARS 2B
SEEEN/ 0 AR 43,000,000/ AR
43,000,007 ( =B~ 4 : ARE42,000000
7o/ AR430000007L) ©

BRREESER QA 20175 ) 133

ol
o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IR RS R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. R TIAREXREKRERE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Fair value as at

Fair value
Financial assets RESIRHZRARE hierarchy
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
SREE ZB-tF+ZBZ1-H ZE " F+ZA=1-R MEEZR
3)  Unlisted debt securities classified ~ Convertible notes issued by Convertible notes issued by Level 3
as available-for-sale financial Premium Castle Limited Premium Castle Limited
assets Note 19) (Note (vj}) - HK$18,457,000 (Note () - HK$16,412,000

3 PEAERTHLESFEE  HPremium Castle Limited®  diPremium Castie Limited®/72  £3%
FEmERES (Hit19) e ARRER (HE W) AAREE (H)

-18,457,000% 7t -16412,00087C
Debenture issued by the Debenture issued by the American  Level 3
American Club Club (Note (1) - HK$1,720,000

(Note (v - HK$2,030,000

fAmerican Club% 1T 2 E&®  FAmerican Club% 172 ElEE BRI
(K& iy - 2,030,000% 7T (M) 1,720,000

134 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017

D REEME (&)

EREEFIRAAEBETABZHE

(%)

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
fRERTR
TERAEE

Amortised cost model
(Note ()

BEnARY
(Wittg)

Market approach
(Note (i)

sk (Heti))

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBRBALE

Risk-free rate 0.86%,  risky rate of 9.37% and a
coupon rate of 2.00% (2016: risk-free rate of
1.09%, a risky rate of 10.80% and a coupon rate of
2.00%).

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated
to the credit spread. As at 31 December 2017,
the credit spread used in the valuation is 8.51%
(2016: 9.71%), and it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/decrease of
10% in the credit spread would decrease/increase
the fair value of the convertible notes as a whole by
approximately HK$164,000/ HK$166,000 (2016:
HK$305,000/HK$314,000).

EERAE0.86% £ EMRTIZ.37%REE %E2.00%
(Z2—RE: BERAE1.09% ARRH =
10.80% R 8.%2.00%) °

MEEHEREREZ2AMBEL AT+
F+-A=t-B HEMBERSZA851%
(ZB—RE:071 %)  BEFARMESERT
2 ERSEEN/HO0%SERTAREEE
BLRBERD /R I14)164 000757, /166,000
f%;’c (227N : 305,000/87T,/314,00035
=

Market comparable ranges from HKS1.95 milion to
HK$2.1 million (2016: HKS1.7 million to HK$1.8
million) and the indlividlual factors considered are
the second hand quotation price of American Club
Corporate (Full) Membership in Hong Kong.

TS REEN T1,950,000 722,100,008 T
(273 11,700,000/ 21,800,000/ 7T) *
fifiZ B A5 R & A EAmerican CubA & (52
B)eE -FHE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair

value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(iv)

(V)

(i)

(vii)

Co-Lead Holdings Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability on 22 January 2014, which is principally engaged
in investment holding.

Freeopt Holdings Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in the Republic of the Marshall Islands with
limited liability on 22 December 2015, which is principally
engaged in investment holding.

Freewill Holdings Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in the Republic of the Marshall Islands with
limited liability on 16 June 2014, which is principally
engaged in investment holding.

Joint Global Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in the Republic of the Marshall Islands with
limited liability on 14 September 2015, which is principally
engaged in investment holding.

Smart Role Limited is an exempted company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability on 7 November 2013, which is principally
engaged in investment holding.

On 24 December 2013, the Company subscribed a new
convertible note issued by Premium Castle Limited with
principal amount of HK$18,600,000. The completion of
the subscription took place on 25 February 2014.

On 23 March 2015, the Company subscribed
a debenture issued by the American Club with
consideration of HK$1,800,000. The completion of
subscription took place on 1 June 2015.

The market approach determines the fair value of the
assets by reference to the transaction prices, or valuation
multiples implicit in the transactions prices, of identical or
similar assets on the market.

5. TRIARELARERERE (F)

(c) DREEMAE (&)
EHEEFIRAAEETEZHEK

(#)

HisE

0] Co-Lead Holdings Limited & — =
—F-—A+ - HERBERHS
AR EREBRAR EEH
EREEIRER -

(i)  Freeopt Holdings Limited B —Z—H
F+ A+t -_HESABAESEM
BRI BREBRAR £8
HEREERER -

(i) Freewill Holdings Limited &7 == — Y
FRATANBESAREFS LM
MR Lz ERRBRAR  FEHE
RE IR

(v)  Joint Global Limited &5 ==& — A F N,
BTN BE S ARE S A B AR
VERRERAR EBERERE
PERRZE T o

(v  Smart Role Limited B —ZF — =4
T—AtRERBELES MK
ZERRERAT FEREREE

v) RZZE—=F+-_A=+WEH AR
7] 72 8 3 Premium Castle LimitedFfT %
1778 € %8 418,600,000 JT 2 ¥7 A
BREE - REER_Z—UE_A
—+tHRHERK-

vy M-Z—RAF=ZA=-+=H AAQ7
2B f American ClubZE 1T 2 fE#ERE -
RE 41,800,000 L RIBER=ZF
—RAFENA—HBEK-

MmigESEM S LARRBEUEEZ
RREHKRERES 2 GEREREE
BEZRNAER

(vii)
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

136

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ix)  Comparable sales approach is the present market value
in terms of price per unit volume of the final product and
the total merchantable volume of each species in the
concession as basis for coming up with the estimated
value. The underlying theory of this approach is existing
market price is dependent parameter since it reflects how
much the buyer is willing to pay and how much the seller
is willing to receive to give up his goods and services.

(x) Binomial option pricing model determines the fair value
of the assets by adopting discrete time, non-closed
form model of varying price over time of the underlying
instruments.

(x)  Amortised cost model is the amount at which the financial
asset is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and
minus any reduction for impairment on uncollectibility.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from 2016.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net
debt, which include short-term loans, obligations under
finance leases and promissory notes and interest-bearing
other payables. It finances its operation primary through
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, share option reserve,
available-for-sale financial assets equity reserve, exchange
reserve and accumulated losses.

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017

5. TRIAREARERERE (F)

(c)

(d)

QR RAEEME (&)

EHEEEIRAALEEABEZHIE

(#)

Hraz - (&)

(x) FABLEBHEESASHARBRR
EmZBRIME(RSEMHEER
ATE)RMIGE AR HEMRREERE
% SHEARMGEEE WA ER
EmaRTmEAKEZ2E REAR
RESTESNEZEREETREL
B R B A AR 7 1 B B R 2 (B A o

0 ZIRHVREE B R B R A R AR RS
(#EFA T A ERRER M A PR 2 3F
MEABA) BEEEEZAEE

)  EEEARE SN SRR ES
BEEZSBRASEN SMAK
MER NS RET RS RE 2 EFE
BUABRMB A EZ R &
A2 B A AT MR A 2 BB 2 (AT
R >

EXERER

AEEERLES AR EE LN
BEBEEE WA ERELESR
CEFETSENY F P T
B AR BEERE T A
e 83 4 R B o

AEEZEARBIZERERFE (S
EEHER BEEEAE AALRER
FHREMEMNRIER) ARBEETRBEELR
NEHA ARG ER (BERE - ki
B BhEEHEG JTHLESREERS
FE ELRERREER) RELER
NER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE -

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CAPITAL 5. TRTAREARAKRERE (&)
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued) (d EXERERE (&)
Gearing ratio EXEELE
The Group has adopted a higher finance leverage compared REBRMNREF e 2 B EET -
to the last year. Based on the Group’s policy, the gearing BAEBZZBR REFRBARCELRE
ratio, as calculated as total debt divided by total equity at the B R (NEFEERAESARETE)
end of the reporting period was as follows: OIS
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Debt (Note () &% (H1at)) 158,435 138,851
Equity (Note (i) wew (A7at () (47,443) 43,747
Gearing ratio BRBELE N/A RiE 317.4%
Notes: Ba
(i) Debt comprises short-term loans, obligations under (i) ENBREEHER NEHE 7¥<§‘T* S
finance leases, promissory notes and interest-bearing HEEREA B FRIE
other payables.
(i)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to (i) HEEPEALGEBABGZAHEER
owners of the Company. AR
SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. 2EEHR

The Group manages its business by both business lines and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Board of Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance, the Group
has presented its reportable segments under HKFRS 8 as follows:

Business segment

The Group operates one segment for both years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. All of the Group’s revenue was derived
from investment income from investments in listed and unlisted
securities. Accordingly, the Group does not have separately
reportable segment.

RERRREBRIGREBEER 257
AERETEES (NE2RERRE)ESD
EEREFEDBRAZABRE B &K

l*ETF%i%ﬁﬁ%#E%@EEU REIEAT25 2/ 2
/\*EQDT
BE_ZT—tHFRE-_FT-—A"Ft-_A=1+—H

EREEER AKEEE —ES - AKE
RSB HRERE LTRSS RIFLTES
ZRARA Bl ARB LKA TZES
e
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEEHR (&)

Geographical information ih & & R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. The following RERZEBLUNEE - TRIBEHRASEiRH
table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical EiEElD 2 WD
market:
Revenue by
geographical market
RiEH SRS 2 W&
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT T
Hong Kong B 2,915 1,785
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non- REEMEMRE D 2ERBEE (TEFEA]
current assets (excluding available-for-sale financial assets and HEECREERTRRERAS ZHBRRE)
conversion options embedded in convertible notes) analysed by RESEITAT :

the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount
of non-current assets

FRBEEZRASE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FABT
Hong Kong s> 24,015 33,101
No single customer of the Group contributed 10% or more to the AEERMEFEARESE —5XP 2 BRER
Group's revenue for both years. EEWEZR10% A £ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE 7. W=
The amount of significant category of revenue recognised during REAEEREZHFKE=SHOT

the year is as follow:

2017 2016
—B—tF —ERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER THET

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL RS RIZ AR BEIF 2 @b

(Note) BEZWE (B1B) 38
(Ki77) 575 (200)
Bank interest income RITH B WA 30 20
Interest income from available-for-sale AIHHESREE 2 BWA
financial assets 2,064 1,820
Dividend income i 24 A 246 -
Interest income from a promissory note AR 2 F B - 145
2,915 1,785
Note: Hiat -
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at FVTPL represented: RNIBRRBAABEIEZEREEZNRE (B
18)F5BE
Equity securities
BARE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Proceeds on sales SHEFTS RIE 13,365 7,459
Less: Cost of sales J8 - SHE R AR (12,790) (7,659)
Net realised gain/(loss) on financial assets ~ KRB XIE AL EETEZ
at FVTPL TREECE SR
W,/ (E18)F5 575 (200)
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ERA B SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HWA
2017 2016
—E—+tE ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FBT
Waiver of payment of consultancy fee REBAENRK 3,313 =
Sundry income HMIEWA 1,211 600
Net exchange gain b 5 W 2= ) 2R 1 6
4,525 606
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. AERKA
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Interest expenses on promissory notes EAEBRZFERET 5,829 9,986
Interest expenses on other payables H At pE A 5018 2 B B RS2 9,338 -
Interest expenses on short-term loans HHERZH SR 163 1,934
Interest expenses on obligations under BEREREZFEREZ
finance leases 78 -
Interest expenses on securities trading BHEEBEZHEBRAX 7 2
15,415 11,922
10. TAXATION 10. Fi1B
Current taxation B HA B 18
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the HRAEEREZE_Z—+&+=-A=+—H
Group had no estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 IFFEIWEMAFTERT G A - I B EEF
December 2017 (2016: Nil). FRIELBE (ZE—RF &) -
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ERE IR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 10. H1E (&)
Current taxation (Continued) BIHABEE (4&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to loss FRMEHAS ARG Ba REMEAKER
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ZBRBAIEEARAT :

other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—t& —T—REF
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FET % FHBIT %
|
Loss before taxation BB AIER (123,593) (114,413)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 2 & S5 5% %16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) (ZZ—R"F:16.5%)
STE A (20,393) (16.5) (18,878) (16.5)
Estimated tax effect on income that are not 5 i Jf& 5 A 328 71| 5 1 B iR
taxable in determining taxable profit WA Z EEBs a2 (386) (0.3) (329) 0.3)
Estimated tax effect on expenses that are not 8 i [i& =54 34 A1 5 /1 2] F0 85
deductible in determining taxable profit AR 4 12,327 10.0 9,304 8.1
Estimated tax effect of temporary difference  E i =58 7 (bt B 2 (392) (0.3) (300) 0.2)
Estimated tax effect of unrecognised tax AERTIAEE 2 H %
losses za 8,844 741 10,203 8.9
Income tax expense for the year FRMGHAX - - = =
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AR B TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

11. FREE

2017
S i
HK$’000

TR

2016
ZE—RF
HK$’000
FBT

Loss for the year has been arrived after
charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Directors’ and chief executive officers’
emoluments (Note 12)

Total staff costs, excluding directors’
emoluments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Legal and professional fee

Operating lease rental in respect of
land and building

Impairment loss of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss of other tangible assets

Impairment loss of other receivables

FARBTIEHE T
BIRER:

ZEET N

—EBZR

—IFE RS
BEENTRERMNE (HiZ12)
BETRA (TEEEZEHE)
ME WERRBITE

ZRENSEE £
THRETFZEEHERES

AfHESREEZBERR

HEtBEEEZ RERRE
H Al UK IR 2 B (B B 1B

350
150

5,560

15,253

11,110
1,221

12,231
13,868

1,007
40,800

350

5,760

15,923

11,243
1,296

12,115

18,388
86
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iR e BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 12. EERTHARTHE
OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2016: eight) HE-Z &R "F+=-A=+—H
directors and the chief executive officers for the years ended 31 IEFEENKERNE (ZE—XAF: \&)E
December 2017 and 2016 were as follows: ERTHAE 25T
2017 —E—tF
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits schzkmg Total
B
EE/TRARES ne e Hitn @ STEIHR A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TiER TER TR THEx
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) TBEEEE (£7) - 1,500 1,680 18 3,198
Mr. Wu Tse Wi, Frederick RFBRE - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah FEELL - 277 - 14 201
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Gao Chengming (Note (j) ST E (i) - 98 - - 98
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Note (i) BIRE L E (M) - 98 - - 98
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHREE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin s - 189 - - 189
Mr. Law Tze Lun BYHEE - 189 - - 189
Chief Executive Officer THEBR
Mr. Feng Wen (Note (i) B (BT i) - 930 - - 930
- 3,848 1,680 32 5,560
2016 —T—AREF
Contribution
Other to pension
Name of Director/Chief Executive Officer Fee Salary benefits schgkm%e Total
VLTI E 2 ik % How & SRR At
HK$ 00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T THT T FHT
Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Wong Danny F. (Chairman) TBREEE (/) - 1,500 1,680 18 3,198

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick RYBRE - 378 - - 378
Mr. Fong Chi Wah NEERE - 277 - 14 291
Non-executive Directors FUTES

Mr. Gao Chengming (Note (j) B E (M) - 195 - - 195
Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny (Note (i) BN/ L £ (M) - 195 - - 195
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen EHREE - 189 - - 189
Mr. Liu Jin Eli s - 189 - - 189
Mr. Law Tze Lun BYHELE - 189 - - 189
Chief Executive Officer THABR

Mr. Feng Wen (Note (i) B (HTazi) - 936 - - 936

= 4,048 1,680 32 5,760
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IRE RS R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 12. EERTHEZMNS (&)

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: Kiat

i) Mr. Gao Chengming appointed on 4 March 2015 and resigned (i) EHEEER T AF=-ANAEZT-
on 30 June 2017. WRZE—+FRNA=THEHE

(i) Mr. Lau Chi Lung, Johnny appointed on 17 March 2015 and i) BIMELER_FT—RAF=-A+LHEZ
resigned on 30 June 2017. IR _F—tFANA=THEE

@iy  Mr. Feng Wen appointed as the CEO on 21 March 2016. (i) BNXEERZZE—RNF=ZA=+—HEZE

BITHABE -

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there was REEZZE—+tFE=ZE—R"E+ZA=+—

no arrangement under which a director or CEQ waived or agreed HIEFE $EESRTHRAHMELR BN

to waive any emoluments. B2EMME 2 LHE-

For both years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no HEZZ R "F+ZA=+—H

emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or CEO as an LWEFE - AN BB M E E T AR S M

inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation SERMANEE 2 ZEN S BERE (S -

for loss of office.

The number of the directors and CEO fell within the following EERTHREBHE 2MERAT
bands:

Number of directors and CEO

EERITHARAR

2017 2016

—E—LF —E—RE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000%% 7T 8 8

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T 2 1,500,0007% 7T - -

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001)% 7£ 22,500,000/ 7T - =

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001)% 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T 23,500,000/ 7T 1

9 9
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AR B TSR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-—ZT—+tF+-A=1+—HILEE

13. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 13. SqREEAESMERESHFA L

AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals (@) EuEmESHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included one executive director
(2016: one) whose emoluments were reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements. The emoluments of the remaining four
individuals (2016: four) were as follows:

AEEFANRUGESHFALY BFE—F

TE—RF—R)RTES EMEE
iR A MR FE12F 25 2 D i
Rt HeppE (ZE—RF:HE)A
TZMEmT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Salaries and other short-term Fe M EMEHEE R
employee benefits 5,530 5,677
Contribution to pension scheme BIREFEIHRK 36 36
5,566 (9,718

The emoluments of the four individuals (2016: four), included
four individuals (2016: four) of senior management, with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

ME(ZE—AF:HA)Ze#I AL
(BEAEE(ZE—AF : HA) ahER
AB)ZEleAERImnT :

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 21,000,000/ 75 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 22,000,000/ 75 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 =
4 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILtFE

13. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
AND INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management of the Company

The emoluments of the senior management of the Company
are within the following band:

13.

Zu%%@%%”ﬁ)kﬁ@ﬂﬁ&%%%ﬁki
IIE

(b) XABZEREEAE

ARAERERABZHEBADT -

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 1,000,000/ 75 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T & 1,500,000/ 7& - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0015% 7T 22,000,000/ 7& 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 75 22,500,000/ 7T 1 =
4 4

During the year, no bonus was paid to the five highest paid
individuals of the Group (2016: Nil). No emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as a
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).

14. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
a dividend in respect of both years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
rRE IR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-—ZT—+tF+-A=1+—HILEE

15. BREE

ARBFEAEAREZERERNREEER TR
ToISIERET & :

15. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2017 2016

—E—tF T—RF

Loss HK$’000 HK$OOO
[} T FHBT

Loss for the purpose of basic and AT E AR E N K #E R

diluted loss per share Az EE (123,593) (114,413)
2017 2016

—ZE—tHF A

’000 ‘000

TR TR

Number of shares (restated)
RHEE (&%)

Weighted average number of BERERNREEBER
ordinary shares for the purpose of ?mFH 2 & AR ke
basic and diluted loss per share 2,545,238 2,168,932
The weighted average of ordinary shares for the purpose of BHE_ZT—+tF+_A=1+—HILFE &

RN REB 2 EBRNETFHHE
ABBR=F—LE-A+R —FLe=

calculating basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been adjusted for the effects of both placing and

rights issue completed on 10 January 2017, 7 March 2017 and F] tEER=ZZE—N\F—A=H mﬁkZEE’iﬁf
2 January 2018 respectively (2016: adjusted for the effect of %%ﬂiﬁ FE(= T—/_\i AR =E
placing completed on 26 January 2016, 18 July 2016 and 22 /\i A-+x~B -ZZE—X~"EtA+/N\H
December 2016 respectively). The rights issue completed on 2 F=E—XRF+=A _-f—_ BEXZRE 27

BEHAR) - BE_ZE—RFTA=+—
HIEFEZ EBBRMEFHHERET &

January 2018 has been reflected retrospectively by restating the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year ended 31

December 2016. WRMR —E— \F—A _HER 2 @R zE
2,
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the BE_ZT—+tFhK_FE—XF+-_A=+—H

Company’s outstanding share options were not included in the
calculation of diluted loss per share because the effects of the
Company’s outstanding share options were anti-dilutive.

JJ:EIEF’EEEA$ TZr‘jﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé,ﬂ\&ﬁE
BYE WAESREIFERITERAR
Zréﬁifﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂgﬁiftﬁﬂ
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IRE SRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvement fixtures equipment Computer vehicles Total
BENELE HARKE BOERE B RE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

At cost RERA

Asat 1 January 2016 R=ZE—r%—HA—H 18,122 8,372 591 1,050 8,490 36,625
Additions b L 1,500 - 11 83 - 1,594
As at 31 December 2016 and RZZE—R~E+ZA=+t-HK

1 January 2017 “2—+%—-f-H 19,622 8,372 602 1,133 8,490 38,219

Additions e 950 - - - 2,081 3,031
As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—tF+-A=1+—H 20,572 8,372 602 1,133 10,671 41,250
Accumulated depreciation REHE

Asat 1 January 2016 R=ZE-—x"F—A—-H 5,187 2,840 194 273 3971 12,465

Charge for the year FRLHT 6,541 2,432 120 541 1,609 11,243
As at 31 December 2016 and RZE-R"E+ZA=+t—-HK

1 January 2017 “Z—+%—Hf-A 11,728 5,272 314 814 5,580 23,708

Charge for the year FAXH 6,621 2,428 117 303 1,641 11,110

As at 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF+=-A=1+—H 18,349 7,700 431 1,117 7,221 34,818

Net carrying amount REFE

As at 31 December 2017 RZB-tF+ZA=t+-H 2,223 672 17 16 3,350 6,432

As at 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZA=+-A 7,894 3,100 288 319 2910 14,511
During the year ended 31 December 2017, additions to motor HE-_Z— &+ -_A=1T—HILEE BB
vehicles financed by new finance leases were approximately E] ph & TH & R )T B 492,081,000 7T (=
HK$2,081,000 (2016: Nil). At 31 December 2017, the carrying T—RF:B) RZFE—tF+_HA=+—
amount of the Group’s motor vehicles held under finance leases H AEEREBREHETHEZAERAE
was approximately HK$1,782,000 (2016: Nil). #91,782,000 L (ZT—RF: FT) °
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e RS R KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

17. OTHER TANGIBLE ASSETS 17. Eftt B EE

HK$’000
FET
Cost A
As at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, i /‘jﬁ*ﬂ —H ZZ—XRF
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 t=A=+—B —F—t£-A-AK
—F—t§+=-A=+—-H 21,730
Accumulated impairment RETRE
As at 1 January 2016 RZZT—R"F—A—H 3,054
Impairment for the year FRRIE 36
As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=_FE—X"F+-_A=+—A8K
—E—+5—f—8 3,140
Impairment for the year FRREE 1,007
As at 31 December 2017 R=F—tF+=A=+—H 4147
Carrying amount RESE
As at 31 December 2017 R=F-—tH#+=-A=+—H 17,583
As at 31 December 2016 R=F-—RFE+=A=1—H 18,590

The amount represents the aggregate cost of art work, diamond
and diamond ring held by the Group. During the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, the directors of the Company, after
referencing to professional valuation reports, determined that
there is impairment loss of approximately HK$1,007,000 (2016:
HK$86,000) as the recoverable amounts of the other tangible
assets were below their carrying amounts.

The recoverable amount of other tangible assets are determined
based on its fair value less costs to disposal by market comparison
model. The value of the assets assessed by comparing the asset
being valued to comparable items recently sold. Using similar units
of comparison, adjustments are made based on the elements of
comparison to the sales prices of the comparable. The fair value
hierarchy is Level 2.

ZECHEASEMEREM R BAREAN
EZRARB - REE_T—tFR T~
F+_A=+—HLLEE K2EFEHER
LR ARFRESTET BREMEREEZ
A EBEERAEEASR BREFELA
1,007,000/ 7T (=Z — 734 : 86,000/ 7T ) °

HMB A EZ IR E & 55 A5 L B0
BREAABERLEXKAEE EEEBEZ
AR AL BAFEEERSRIHEZTE
HWBRIER - ARRABREABEULREL X E
BRUBARH AT ELREAR 2EBELHH
BE-FHAREEBF2R -
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IRE SRR R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFE N 2R
A detail of the Group’s interests in associates is as follows: AEBRBEE QAR 2 ERFBOT
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH&T
Cost of investment in associates /N o= Y D 7N
— Unlisted —3E bt - -

Share of post-acquisition loss and other FE(E IR B 1% B 18 K
comprehensive income, net of dividends HEma2mEmls ke Wk S

received

— Unlisted —3E Lk - _
Amount due from an associate (Note (j) JE W Bt X R RIE (M7 AE())

— Unlisted —FE LT 30,000 30,000
Less: share of post-acquisition loss and A R EIE R MR

other comprehensive income, net of Wz - MR E R S

dividends received

— Unlisted (Note (i) —3E T (Hata)) (30,000) (30,000)
Total 4 EE - -
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18.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ=_—Z

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

U

(i)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Company will not demand
repayment within one year from the end of reporting period and
are therefore considered as non-current.

On 17 April 2014, Essence Sharp Holdings Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has established Medisun
Holdings (Overseas) Limited (“Medisun Holdings”), incorporated
under the laws of British Virgin Islands. The principal activities
of Medisun Holdings and its subsidiaries are development
of bio-pharmaceutical and regenerative medicine system
and products. The investment cost amount to approximately
HK$800 and the Group did not share of losses of associates
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately
HK$15,195,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount
due from an associate form part of the Group’s net investment
and the Group did not share of losses of associates for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: the Group’s share the
excess part of losses of associates amounted to approximately
HK$15,195,000).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
FRE RS R KRR
— {gaEqr = B =50 ENlEEE)E

18. REtE LA 2w (F)

BaT -

)  EREBEQRFUESEER 8 KERE
BFH - ARAEERL ARATERA
2MBAREFT —FRAEREE  BRIRIEE
BIER

i) RZZE-—MFEA++E FEEzEE
Kt B A lEssence Sharp Holdings Limited
X 32 Medisun Holdings (Overseas) Limited
([Medisun Holdings | * JYiR B KB R LB S
SRR FEMAKIL) » Medisun Holdings & £ ff B
RAIZFEXBRABREMHERBERE
B RGN m o 1R E AR K 8008 I &
EFE—+FFTZA=T—HLEFEAXRE
B EmEEEE N aEE (22 —RF 4
15,195,000/ ¢ ) °

NABEERAE BE-_T—+F+_H8
_+ AIEERE El— ﬁaﬁﬂéﬁ;—:@ HIEE
ZIK‘EI‘%&%QZ*&B% i 2N 5= [ 37 42 FE 1
6&%/&7@5% TN AEEE( LR
TEﬂaZtﬁ*ﬁMﬁﬁw 195,000/t ) °
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ERE SRR EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE—_ZT—t&+_A=+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REFE N A 2= (&)

(CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s associates which are held indirectly by the
Company as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Principal
Name of Form of Place of Fully paid place of
associate entity incorporation share capital operation

BENTEH BEp AR L 3 BHRRA TEERBY

g
R=

—tEERZE-RF+ZA=+—H @A

ATﬁ&hﬁZ$%l%%“TZ?IWTZ

Class of

shares
held

Proportion of

nominal value Proportion

of issued share of voting  Principal
capital held power held  activities
FisERfT Firi

FERGER RAEELH RELH TERH

Medisun Holdings Incorporated British Virgin Islands  US$50,000 Hong Kong

Medisun RV RERUEHS 50,000% 7T Bk
Holdings

Hong Kong National  Incorporated Hong Kong HK$5 Hong Kong
Investments Fund
Limited

BE BaiiAv 0 5B BB
225
EEERAT

OBOR Investment Incorporated Hong Kong HK$100 Hong Kong
Fund Limited

—5—5 BaiiAv 0 10077T BB
REES
BRAR7A

Notes:

(0} The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of Medisun
Holdings. The directors of the Company consider that the Group
does have significant influence over Medisun Holdings and it is
therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

(i) The Group holds 20% of the issued share capital of Hong Kong
National Investments Fund Limited (“Hong Kong National”). The
directors of the Company consider that the Group does have
significant influence over Hong Kong National and it is therefore
classified as an associate of the Group.

(i)  The Group holds 30% of the issued share capital of OBOR
Investment Fund Limited (“OBOR Investment Fund”). The
directors of the Company consider that the Group does have
significant influence over OBOR Investment Fund and it is
therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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Ordinary

(i

(i)

30% 30% (Note () Investment
holdings
30%  30% (MHp) REERR

20% 20% (Note (i) Dormant

0% 0% (M) LEEX

30% 30% (Note (i) Dormant

30%  30% (M) EEE%

7N = [ 5 A Medisun Holdings 2 30% & % 17
R - RAREFR A A& B ¥ Medisun
HoIdingsEEK% 27 AtBESBRRA
ESE A NG

AEEREREREECERARAR ([&H

BB ) Z20%E BEITHA - ARRIEER

% AEBYHEEEREE %%ﬁ'ﬁ%
B E DR AANE B 2 & N )

AEERFE—HBREEZSFRAR ([—
mRIRE RS |) Z80%08 BITRA - AR
AEERA AEEYH T BREESHA
EXFEN RUBEDBERASE 2=

NS

FRAKESBERRZMBERBEZHSIW
T TXMIIZHBER BB SR RIER

&

MM EERNRE MR TSR
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REfE NTI 2R (&)
(CONTINUED)
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method B %S E Ra g A2 AT AlLRE
in these consolidated financial statements. B SRR o

Medisun Holdings

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FET

Current assets mENEE 61,976 16,854
Non-current assets EMBEE 108,906 36,250
Current liabilities mENEE (80,690) (51,901)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (372,492) 227,119)
Revenue Iz 57,044 88,942
Loss for the year FANEE (88,298) (143,455)
Loss attributable to the Group REE EGEE - (15,195)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE RNAI 2 X ()

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

LB ER MR LR M B HRRAAERR
e NR 2R R R

Medisun Holdings

2017 2016
—®—t% —F-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#T T

ZMERREAAREFAE

Net liabilities attributable to the owners of

the associate (282,300) (225,916)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 25 5 [& 7 Medisun Holdings 2.
in Medisun Holdings 1 75 R e 19 30% 30%
Share of post-acquisition loss and other R A EEREMEE
comprehensive loss, net of dividends B8 - R E WK B
received - (67,775)
Amount due from an associate FEU— [ B & A R SR IE - 30,000
Others H At - 37,775
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7%= [E i Medisun Holdings 2
Medisun Holdings HEm s RS - -
Hong Kong National
EHRER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FET
Current assets mEN & E 4 17
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
Current liabilities B A& (11) (@2)
Non-current liabilities EmBaE (28) (26)
Revenue Y zs - =
Loss for the year FREE 4 (9)
Loss attributable to the Group AEBEEGEE - =
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
iR e BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. REtE N A 2w (F)

Lt B 75 B KB B B AR A B RS R R 0 P RE AR

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the B NR 2 Em s RS2 5K

consolidated financial statements:

Hong Kong National

EBER
2017 2016
—ZE—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT

Net liabilities attributable to the owners of
the associate

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest
in Hong Kong National

Share of post-acquisition loss and other
comprehensive loss, net of dividends
received

ZMERRHEAAREFAE

(35) 37
AEBREEEE
BEAEERLL D 20% 20%
EEWERBREREMEE

B8 kR B RS

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
Hong Kong National

AEENEEREZ
P PR & B - -

OBOR Investment Fund

—H—BRBREES
2017 2016
Bt —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT F#&T
Current assets MEEE 5 5
Non-current assets EMBEE - =
Current liabilities mEBEE - =
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (52) (45)
Revenue Wz - =
Loss for the year FREE ] (40)
Loss attributable to the Group AEBEEGEE - =
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ERE SRR EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—BHILFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REt&E ARz s (&)
(CONTINUED)
Recondiliation of the above summarised financial information to the IS E R B AR S B R AT RERR
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the BE ARz Em RS 2R

consolidated financial statements:

OBOR Investment Fund

—B-BRALS
2017 2016
—E—t# e
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T T

Net liabilities attributable to the owners of ZHME DT HEAERFAE

the associate (47) (40)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest ANEBR —HF—RKIEEE S 2
in OBOR Investment Fund 1 75 A 2 L 1B 30% 30%
Share of post-acquisition loss and other FE(R UL B 12 518 IR Aol
comprehensive loss, net of dividends ZHEE  HRB KRS
received - -
Carrying amount of the Group’s interestin =~ ANEBR —H— KL EHE S 2
OBOR Investment Fund BEZ RS - =
Unrecognised share of losses of associates REAZEEHEATEER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
The unrecognised share of losses of RIER Z FE(HE & A RFEANEE
associates for the year (26,492) (27,859)
Cumulative share of losses of associates S NIt (54,351) (27,859)
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 19. AIHHESREE
ASSETS
2017 2016
—g—+f e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Unlisted securities JE EMRES

— Equity securities — R FE S 88,200 101,000
- Debt securities —BBES 20,487 18,132
108,687 119,132

Analysed for reporting purposes as: REHRENSTA:
— Non-current assets —JEmBEE 88,200 101,000
— Current assets —REEE 20,487 18,132
108,687 119,132
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 19. At ESHMEE (&)
ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The following is a list of available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 LWTAEARZE—+tFR=ZZF—X"F+=ZA
December 2017 and 2016: =t+t—HzUHEESRHEEX:
Proportion Net assets
share capital  attributable to Fair value Fair value
owned asat the Group as at as at 31 as at 31
31 December 31 December Cost of December December
Name of equity/debt securities 2017 2017 investment 2017 2016
R-B-tF R-B-+F
+=ZA=+-B +=A=t-H R=B-tfF HRITKF
FEERE AEEEEZ +=A=+-B +=ZA=+—H
BRE/BHEES LB B BERE REMA ZANERE ZASERE
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TER THT
Equity securities issued by: ATARBITZRAES:
- Upperclass Developments Limited —Upperclass Developments
(“Upperclass’) (Note (i) Limited ( [Upperclass | )
(Hazam) 30 27,941 - - =
- Smart Role Limited (“Smart Role”) (Note (i) —Smart Role Limited
([SmartRole]) (#fz#(i)) 8 56,574 59,680 56,560 51,200
- Co-Lead Holdings Limited (‘Co-Lead") (Note (i) —Co-Lead Holdings Limited
([Co-Lead ) (Hiz# () 0.49 14,043 15,908 13,700 15,500
- Freeopt Holdings Limited (‘Freeopt’) (Note (i)~ —Freeopt Holdings Limited
([Freeopt]) (Kizt(y) 3.35 15,111 16,000 15,400 20,700
- Freewill Holdings Limited (‘Freewill’) (Note (7))~ —Freewill Holdings Limited
(TFreewil 1) (Hiz#)) 0.59 2,265 15,950 1,840 12,500
- Joint Global Limited (“Joint Global") (Note (vij)) ~ —Joint Global Limited
([Joint Global |) (A& (vi)) 0.88 1,241 16,038 700 1,100
Debt securities issued by: ATARBITZERES:
— Premium Castle Limited —Premium Castle Limited
(“Premium Castle’) (Note (i) ([Premium Castle ] ) N/A N/A
(K2 wiy) TER TEH 12,056 18,457 16,412
- The American Club (*American Club”) (Note (i) - The American Club
(TAmerican Club ] ) N/A N/A
(Hiit() TER TER 1,800 2,030 1,720
108,687 119,132
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ=_—Z

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0

(i)

The unlisted equity securities and unlisted debt securities are
measured at fair value and are classified as Level 3 fair value
measurement. The fair value of unlisted equity securities is
estimated by applying price-to-book ratios for similar listed
companies and reference to the market value of underlying
net assets and adjusted to reflect the specific circumstance of
the investments. The fair value of debt element of the unlisted
debt securities is calculated based on the present value of
contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted
at the required yield, which was determined with reference to the
credit rating of the issuers of the unlisted debt securities and the
maturity terms. The discount rate is 15.00% (2016: 17.00%).

Unlisted equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reasonably assessed, such unlisted equity
securities are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

On 8 April 2013, Top Onward Development Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Mr. Li, a shareholder of Upperclass which incorporated under
the laws of British Virgin Islands, in relation to the acquisition
of 30% equity interest and the transfer of contractual right to
receive another receivable owed by Upperclass. This resulted
in an indirectly held of approximately 16% equity interest in
Hua Tong International Leasing Co., Limited (“Hua Tong”),
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability. The principal activities of Hua Tong are leasing. The
investment cost and other receivable amount to HK$234 and
approximately HK$40,800,000 respectively, and the transaction
was completed on 30 December 2013. The Group is unable to
exercise significant influence over Upperclass and Hua Tong as
it does not have the power to appoint any of their directors and
do not participate in their policy-making processes.

The other receivable amount to approximately HK$40,800,000
has been impaired during the year ended 31 December 2017
as Hua Tong has significant financial difficulties and the directors
of the Company considered that the possibility to recover was
remote.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R KRR
—t+tF+—A=1+—HLFE

19. AHESREE (&)

BaT

) LT AESRLIEETEFREFRAAE
Bt BN EAEIRANBETE FE LT
BAZBEFZ ARBEEREN EMARZ MR
K. W2ERBFEEMEM WIELHA
BUARMIGE 2 HEBR - FELTEBEF
BEREBDZAABETIRARERRELLIE
ZAKBEERZOERSRENE  HEHK
RI2EE EMEBBHFETAZEETR
R FHMEEE - BhIR K A15.00% (= —7X
£ :17.00% ) °

(i)  FELETRAZBSMNERM S LI ERE
mMeEEARBEZAFEEALN BZEG
T2 AT e A B BATE AR S 2R
B AR B SRR E BT 2B RE3E L
MR AE S o

RZTE—=FmWANB FEERERAD
Al (ANEE 2z 2 & WE 2R A EUpperclass
(REBEEBERHS AZFMAILZA
AR REZEETL—HE AREEHE
I B Upperclass 2 30% % #E K 8 3% U B
Upperclass ER 2B —ERYGRIE 26 K
|- WIS HERFAFEREEHEEERA
U%@J R ZEAREMBEMAL 2
ﬁﬁﬁf&"ﬂ)£’716%H§%°§L2‘£§¥
RS - RENAREMEKRIES R A
23478 7t & #940,800,0007% Tt ﬁﬁﬁ@%aﬁé
—E-—=F+-A=tHEK -ARASE
5] 2 4% & {TUpperclass & 38 2 (T = 5
INES RS 2 RRBIE - Eﬁlﬂiﬁlﬁiﬂ“ﬁ
Upperclass R BT E AR E

HREBRAEATBESEMARNGDNEER
AU B FRIE 2 A RE AR - Bk E b fE AR SR B
#340,800,0008 TEREE=T—tF+=
B=+—RBILFERE
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continueq)

(i)

(iv)

160

On 24 September 2014, Massive Shine Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Trillion Cheer Toprich Limited (“Trillion Cheer”), a shareholder of
Smart Role which incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. This result in an indirectly held in
8% equity interest of & 3 (2 # ) 2 M A R A 7 (“Hancheng
Bazhong”), incorporated under the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability. The principal activities of Hancheng Bazhong
are holding of the Forest Rights Certificates. The investment cost
amount to approximately HK$59,680,000, and the transaction
was completed on 24 September 2014. No dividend was
entitled to the Group during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

On 14 January 2016, Old Peak Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Co-Lead which incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands with limited liability. The principal activities of Co-
Lead are investment holdings. The investment cost amount
to approximately HK$15,908,000, and the transaction was
completed on 15 January 2016. The Group directly held 0.49%
equity interest of Co-Lead according to issued share capital of
Co-Lead as at 31 December 2017. No dividend was entitled to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Due to significant change with the performance of the
available-for-sale financial asset, the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial asset decreased significantly.
Impairment loss of approximately HK$2,208,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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19. AHHESREE (&)

Hrat - (&)

(i)

(iv)

R=-ZF—WMFH A=+ H  Massive Shine
Limited (A & & 2 2 & Ki & 2 7)) E2Smart
Role (1R IE EBE XS AR FMALZ
AR E TR 7)) & EKTrillion Cheer Toprich
Limited ([Trillion Cheer | ) 8] 3\ — 3 # 3% °
fEREREEHEAES (Bh) ERERA
Al (DEBME P AR EA R LT F MK
M ZBEREERAT) Z8%RAE < E FHE F
LEBXEBRFBEMEZR -BEKANA
59,680,000/ 7T ' MR 5 BN = F —MF 11
AZt+HHEK BHE-_ZT—tFR=-F
—ANF+_A=+—HALLEE AEEEE
HERREE °

R=_Z—XF—A+MH  Old Peak Limited
(REB 22 EMB R A)ECo-Lead (1R1F
BBE TS AEFMA 2 BRAR)ET
S 155 © Co-Leadw = B ¥ 1§ AR EEAL - 1%
& BN 5 #915,908,0008 7T M X ZE R =
T—NE— A+ 5 HEMK R ECo-Lead?
Bt F+-A=+—RAZBEBTRA

AN & B B 255 A Co-Lead 2 0.49% A% 4 - A&
EREBE—_ZT—+t&+-_A=T—BULFE
ERERERAR S o

HRAEEESRMEEZ RERESKE
B B AHEESMEEZ ANBEKNE
TBE o BB B 18 4)2,208,00058 7T B A AN E
BE_ T t+tF+_A=1t—HUEFEZRK
EER@mRPRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continueq)

)

(Vi)

On 14 January 2016, the Company has entered into agreement
with Freeopt which incorporated in Republic of the Marshall
Islands with limited liability. The principal activities of Freeopt
are investment holdings. The investment cost amount to
approximately HK$16,000,000, and the transaction was
completed on 15 January 2016. The Group Directly held 3.35%
equity interest of Freeopt according to issued share capital of
Freeopt as at 31 December 2017. No dividend was entitled to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Due to significant change with the performance of the available-
for-sale financial asset, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset decreased significantly. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$600,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2017.

On 14 January 2016, the Company has entered into agreement
with Freewill which incorporated in Republic of the Marshall
Islands with limited liability. The principal activities of Freewill
are investment holdings. The investment cost amount to
approximately HK$15,950,000, and the transaction was
completed on 15 January 2016. The Group directly held 0.59%
equity interest of Freewill according to issued share capital of
Freewill as at 31 December 2017. No dividend was entitled to
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Due to significant change with the performance of the available-
for-sale financial asset, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset decreased significantly. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$10,660,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$3,450,000).

Hiat -

W)

(vi)

19. AEESREE (&)

(%)

RZZE—ARF— A+WHH  &AA A EFreeopt
(EERBEEANMBEFMKZZERAE])
A1 7% © FreeoptZ E B E K AR EIER -
& X 7R A %916,000,000/8 75 TR 5 B 7R
—Z—"F— A+ R A %K B EFreeopti?
T tF+ A=+ HZEBTRA
AN £2 B B 2 45 A Freeopt 2 3.35% A% # « Ak &=
EREBE—ZT—+t&+=-A=T—HLEE
EERERRRE -

HRAHEHEEMEECRBEZLETAE
B BUAHREESREEZAABEANR
TIZ% g m@%%,ameoo,oooﬁénaﬁé$m@@

t¢+_ﬂi+*ﬂﬁ:¢f§2ﬁ\’a\
TE %EF'E?’E

RZZT—R"F—A+HEHE A7 EFreewill
(EERBEERANBEFEMK I ZERAE])
5T 17755 © Freewillz = B 15 AR E1R -
& & B AN 5 #915,950,0008 7T A2 5 2R
—E—RNF— A+ HB K 1R IEFreewil
—E—tF+-A=+—RAZEBTRA
7N &£ B B 2 5 A Freewill 2 0.59% 0% # - A8 &
EREBE—_ZT—+t&+-_A=T—HLEE
EIEERAR B ©

Ehﬁéﬁfﬁi\ﬂj%éﬂéEZ%%fﬁé’ﬁiiﬁﬁ
B Rt AN ESREEZ AAEBEKE
T o (B 5 1B ,zm 0,660,000/ 7t B I A &
@@ﬁ:%—tiJr—ﬁﬂrfEut@*z

AlEERPER (ZF—/NF 3,450,000
/%TE)
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continueq)

(vii

(il

(ix)

162

On 14 January 2016, Eighty Riches Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has entered into agreement with
Joint Global which incorporated in Republic of the Marshall
Islands with limited liability. The principal activities of Joint
Global are investment holdings. The investment cost amount
to approximately HK$16,038,000, and the transaction was
completed on 15 January 2016. The Group directly held 0.88%
equity interest of Joint Global according to issued share capital
Joint Global as at 31 December 2017. No dividend was entitled
to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Due to significant change with the performance of the available-
for-sale financial asset, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset decreased significantly. Impairment loss of
approximately HK$400,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$14,938,000).

Premium Castle and the Group have agreed to settle the loan
receivable by entering into a new subscription agreement
(“Subscription Agreement”) on 24 December 2013 and
subscribed a new convertible note issued by Premium
Castle (“New Premium Castle CN”) with principal amount
of HK$18,600,000, which comprise principle amount and
outstanding interest of HK$17,000,000 and approximately
HK$1,600,000 respectively from the outstanding Premium
Castle CN. The completion of the subscription took place on 25
February 2014. Details of the Subscription Agreement were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated on 24 December
2013.

Initial recognition of the debt element of the New Premium
Castle CN and the conversion options element of the New
Premium Castle CN in accordance with HKAS 39, amounting to
approximately HK$12,056,000 and HK$6,224,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the principal amount
of the New Premium Castle CN is HK$18,600,000 (2016:
HK$18,600,000). There was no disposal or redemption during
the year ended 31 December 2017. No dividend was entitled
to the Group during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

On 28 March 2015, the Company subscribed a debenture
issued by the American Club (the “Debenture”) with a principal
amount of HK$625,000 at a consideration of HK$1,800,000.
The completion of the subscription took place on 1 June 2015.
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19. AHHESREE (&)

Hrat - (&)

(i)

(viil

(ix)

W Z=ZF—7"F— A+ MA - Eighty Riches
Limited (AN & B 2 2 & K B A 7)) & Joint
Global (TE GAMBE S XMBFMALZE
[RAR]) 5Tt ° Joint Globalz =B 555
B PERR - 3B B AR 5 4916,038,00078 7T ©
REERZT—ANF—A+ABTR - RIE
Joint GlobalA —Z—+E&+-A=+—H~
BETRA - A& B H 3155 Joint Globalz
0.88%EE -AEBRBE_T—+tF+=
A=+—RLLFEERERKS

HRAAEHESRHEEZ KRB R EERE
B Ut AIHEESREEZ AR EEAKNE
T F% o R E ETE 49400,0005 7T 2 R AN £ [ B
E_E—+F+-A=+—HILEEZES
BmAikPRER(ZZF— /3 F :14,938,000/8
JL) °

Premium CastlefE R EBREZER T —=F
+—A-—tWAFYHRE RS ([REH
) B RERE R iR Premium Castle
FiT 8817 78 % 58 /18,600,000 7T 2 1 7] 32 i
Z & ([#7Premium CastleR[#5 Z ) - B
8 7N & %8 B 15 K JE & 2 Premium CastleA] 2
B Z 4% ~ 7K 4 EE17,000,0007% 7T K2 A 1B 12 F|
B.491,600,000/8 T - REEENRN T —MF
ZAZ+HABEK -REBZEFBHIRLER
AERA—T—Z=F+_A-_tNBEZA%
Ao

RIBET B ERFE39R U LR
Premium Castler] #2 i& =& 2 (E 7% 2610 K& 57
Premium CastleR] # i% 4% 2 2R 2B 10 7
7114912,056,0007% 7T 56,224,000/ JT ©

REZE—+tFR T —R"F+_A=+—
B - #Premium Castle FI R ZH5 2 NE 58 &
18,600,000/ 70 ( == —7<4F : 18,600,000/
) REBEZT—tF+_A=+—H1E
FEAHEETEENER REE-_ZT—+
FRZF-RNEFT_A=FT—HIEFE &
SESEEERRES

RZZE—FRF=A=-+=0 ARFRAHEH
American ClubZ 17 2 BE#EZE ([EREZE]) -
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T RBEHEN _-_ZE—AHAF~NA—H=E
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 10. T HESRMEE (&)
ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The following is the analysis of fair value change of available-for- LNTARBE-_Z—tFER_Z—X~F+=A
sale financial assets for the years ended 31 December 2017 and =T —RLEFEAHEESREECAREE
2016: BE DT

Change in fair value during
the year ended 31 December

RBE+t=A=1+—H

LtEEZAREBEEZS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Name of unlisted equity/debt securities HK$’000 HK$’000
FEETRA BERESERE FET THET
|
Unlisted equity securities issued by: ATNARIEITZ
FEETIRAZES
— Smart Role —Smart Role 5,360 (8,144)
— Co-Lead —Co-Lead (1,800) (408)
— Freeopt —Freeopt (5,300) 4,700
— Freewill —Freewill (10,660) (8,450)
— Joint Global —Joint Global (400) (14,938)
Unlisted debt securities issued by: AT ARIETZ
FELHERERES
— Premium Castle —Premium Castle 354 (240)
— American Club —American Club 310 (80)
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20. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

—tE+-A=t—-HBLFE

20. TERBREBRE 2BRE

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At the beginning of the year F9] 747 1,039

Fair value change NAEEED (740) (292)

At the end of the year FR 7 747
Notes: Mt -

@

(i)

164

Conversion options embedded in convertible notes represented
the conversion option element of the convertible notes
subscribed by the Group and are measured at fair value using
the binomial option pricing model at initial recognition and
at the end of each reporting period. The debt element of the
convertible notes is classified as available-for-sale financial
assets.

As explained in Note 19, the Group subscribed New Premium
Castle CN during the year ended 31 December 2014 and
amount of approximately HK$6,224,000 was recognised as
conversion option embedded in convertible note which was
measured at fair value at initial recognition. At 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of conversion option in New Premium
Castle CN was approximately HK$7,000 (2016: HK$747,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HILtFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

No listed equity securities was held by the Group as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The followings are the analysis of realised gain/(loss) of each held-
for-trading investments for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016:

21. RERREAANBEIGZEH
gE

AEER_F—LtFER_F-—RE+=A
=+t HYERSAEMN LETRAE

RTRAREBE_F—tFR_F—RF+=-A
=T Hti&lﬁ?‘%f’ﬁﬁaﬁézaﬁfﬁﬂi
&,/ (BE) D

2017 —E—+tF
Place of Selling Cost of Realised
incorporation Stock code price investment gain/(loss)
BERNE
Name of equity securities BARESEB 17 A 3L 1t 26 A3 15 &E RERA (F#8)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TR
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. ~ #BERITRHERLDA  People’s Republic 3968 5,586 4,921 665
of China
REAREA
HSBC Holdings plc HSBC Holdings plc England 5 4,906 4,958 (52)
EIER
Tencent Holdings Limited BAERERA Cayman Islands 700 2,873 2,911 (38)
RE#s
2016 —E-RF
Cost of Realised
Stock code Selling price investment loss
i \ BER
Name of equity security RAEHATE RIDHSR £E REKA BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T TR
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. BRRTRHERAF 3968 7,459 7,659 (200)

A brief description of the business and financial information of
the above listed equity securities, based on its latest financial
statements, is as follows:

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. is principally engaged in the
provision of corporate and personal banking services, conducting
treasury business, the provision of asset management and other
financial services.

HSBC Holdings plc is principally engaged in the provision of
financial services and products to companies, governments and
institutions.

Tencent Holdings Limited is principally engaged in the provision of
value-added services and online advertising services to users in the
People’s Republic of China.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, dividend income
of approximately HK$126,000 and HK$120,000 was received
from HSBC Holdings plc and China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.,
respectively (2016: No dividend income was received).

RESOHAYHRE Ll EHRAZHFOE
BRMBEREARLIAT

BERTRNBER AR EZH ML R E
NRITIRT B XD RHUEETEREM
T B ARG TS o

HSBC Holdings plcEZ{E R A 7 « BT Kk
BlRto RS REMET -

BARZERERAR I ERHEARKMBELSE
AR REMIRERE MR EEE R R -

BT —tF+A=1+—HLEFE B
126,000/ 7T % 120,000/ 7T 2 & B WA T 5 5]
B HSBC Holdings plck BERITRH BRA
AIURER (Z T — A F - BHEREIR B KA o
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22.

23.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, ANRE RERHEMERFIE
RECEIVABLES

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHEIT
Prepayments TET RIE 537 419
Other receivables (Note) H W IE (HfeE) 3,672 44,057
Rental deposits and other deposits Heke kEtize 3,219 2,880
7,428 47,356
Note: Kiat -
Other receivables mainly include interest receivables from available-for- HMERSETERENREESMEE ZER
sale financial assets of approximately HK$2,964,000 (2016: interest F B492,964,000/8 70 ( —F— R F: Al HES R
receivables from available-for-sale financial assets and other receivable & 2 FE YRR B 492,330,000 T LA R i IR E A F)
from an investee of approximately HK$2,330,000 and HK$40,800,000 2 H th B W FRIE 440,800,000/ 7T ) (X152 H
respectively) (please refer to Note 19(ii) for details). B EE19() )
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23. R RW|ITHER
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Cash and bank balances e RIRITERR 32,724 5,361
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFRITIFER 2,070 2,040
34,794 7,401
Deposits with banks earn interest at floating rates based on bank R 1717 BRI R 1717 SR (7 & A R 3 )Z &) A
deposit and saving rates. The bank balances and pledged bank KT B o IRITAE SR R B IPIRITF RF AR I
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent FERMENTCERBEGEEZRIT - RZTE—+t
history of default. As at 31 December 2017, the bank deposits of F+=-HA=+—H" 2,070,000 T (ZF—<
HK$2,070,000 (2016: HK$2,040,000) were pledged to a bank to % : 2,040,000 L) 2 1T F R E H I T R
secure trade credit facilities granted to the Group. T URERTAEE ZEZFER/ME -
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24. SHORT-TERM LOANS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR IR Mt
—tF+-A=t+-BLFE

24. BHIERK

2017 2016
=8 =E AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHEIT
Amount due to an associate (Note (i) FEAT — B R
( HiaEa)) 6,833 =
Loans from third parties = ER (M a2 % (i)
(Notes (i) and (iif))
— Principal i NG - -
— Interest — K B - _
6,833 -
Unsecured iR 6,833 -
Carrying amount repayable (Note (iv)): EEEERSE (HZi) -
Within one year —F R 6,833 -

Notes:

U

(i)

Since 15 August 2017, the Company entered into loan
agreements with Medisun Holdings Limited (“Medisun”), an
associate of a subsidiary of the Company, in an aggregated
amount of HK$6,670,000. The loan was unsecured and
repayable on the date of one year from the date of loan
agreements with interest rate of 12% per annum. The balances
represent the loan principal and outstanding interest of
approximately HK$6,670,000 and HK$163,000 respectively.

The Company entered into a loan agreement with Freeman Opto
Money Lending Corporation Limited (‘Freeman”) amounted to
HK$1,500,000 on 12 October 2017. The loan was repayable
on the date of one month from the date of loan agreement
with interest rate of 2% per month. The loan principal and
outstanding interest of approximately HK$1,500,000 and
HK$80,000 respectively were recognised in other payables
upon maturity (please refer to Note 25 for details).

BT -

(i

R-ZE—tENATHE  ARAGEARRD
fFEﬂrfﬁ% A 2 BN B 2R i B f%lﬁ
nal ([l )T 4 ££6,670,000
,%EZE K o ZE R AEEA B AR A
EXmEBHETm—FERER BFIK
FIEA2[E 5T B - #2585 5 51 496,670,000 7T
163,000/ 7T 2 B FA & 58 [ i# oK (B2 F

B o
/T

A A & B2 Freeman Opto Money Lending
Corporation Limited ([Freeman | ) /A = &
—+%+ A+=H7J321,500,00077C 2 B
ko ZERERBE R BB BB m—
BMAERESRE BREKRMEKI2EFE -5 5
#71,500,0007% 7T 580,000 T 2 EFR A & K&
*1@5&%' BB A B B R A EL fth B {<F R T8 R 1
R (FIER2HME25) o
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24. SHORT-TERM LOANS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

168

The Company entered into a loan agreement with Enhanced
Finance Limited (“Enhanced”) amounted to HK$65,000,000
and HK$10,000,000 on 14 January 2016 and 2 February
2016 respectively. The loan was repayable on the date of one
year from the date of loan agreement with interest rate of 12%
per annum. The balance of approximately HK$60,294,000
was partially settled by cash on 28 January 2016 resulting
an outstanding principal of HK$15,000,000 (the “Enhanced
Facility”).

The Company entered into loan agreements with Hansom
Finance Limited (“Hansom”) amounted to HK$5,000,000 (the
“First Facility”) and HK$5,000,000 (the “Second Facility”) on 8
April 2016 and 16 May 2016 respectively, which was secured
by a charge over the interest in its wholly owned subsidiaries,
namely Massive Shine Limited, Old Peak Limited, Eighty Riches
Limited, Union Power Holdings Limited and Fine East Trading
Limited in favour of the lender. The loan was repayable on the
date of three months from the date of drawdown with interest
rate of 2% per month.

On the 20 June 2016, the Company, Enhanced and Hansom
entered into a deed of assignment whereas Enhanced, as the
assignor, assigned the outstanding principal of HK$15,000,000
of the Enhanced Facility to Hansom (the “Assigned Loan”).

On 20 June 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
promissory note (the “PN Deed”) with Hansom to merge the
outstanding principal of the Assigned Loan, the First Facility
and the Second Facility of HK$15,000,000, HK$5,000,000 and
HK$5,000,000 respectively; and the outstanding interest on
the Assigned Loan of approximately HK$716,000, into a single
debt with an aggregated principal amount of approximately
HK$25,716,000 (the “PN”). The PN was repayable on or before
19 December 2016 with interest rate of 3% per month. The
Company charged its assets by way of floating charge as well as
the interest in its wholly owned subsidiaries in favour of Hansom
as security of the debt. The PN and the outstanding interest of
approximately HK$25,716,000 and HK$4,156,000 respectively
were recognised in other payables upon expiry during the year
ended 31 December 2016 (please refer to Note 25 for details).

National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017

24. FHER ()

#iiz - (&)

(i)

ARBEERFEERRAR ([EREFEE]D
RN =B RF-ATHAR=E—XF
— A = H §J 365,000,000/ 7t %% 10,000,000
BT Bk 4 o s B AR B B 5K % A
Hestm —F & B EE  BFRANE12E
B o & #74760,294,000 TE R —F —R%F
— At N\BBOHUARSES  ALEER
B3R £ 815,000,000/ 7T ([HERFLE |) °

ARREERFHEAER AR ([M1EAE]) DA
RZEBE-—RFOHANBRZZ—XREEA
475 B 51375,000,000% 7T ([ —H@E])
56,000,000 T ([E=MH@E ) 2B
B UNERARRBABRARBREEE
FiE 2 & (BIMassive Shine Limited Old Peak
Limited * Eighty Riches Limited * Union Power
Holdings Limited & Fine East Trading Limited )
ZREREER - ZE AR RIRE B B et
m=AREBEE FAEANK2EHE -

RZE—RESNAZTH XAA ER
FEERERITIEEZZE Bt £EE
BE(EABZNERERREREELRS
15,000,000/8 T F1B88% ([EBEER]) °

RZB—RENAZ+TH AARHEERH
RN AR ERRE ([RAZERE|)NUE
HEZER F—ORERFE-_MRMEZ
KEBAE 585 5l 4A15,000,000/8 7T *
5,000,0007 7t }5,000,000/ 7t : M & E
Y REEF B 4716,000/8 Tt AKX S
1A FB ) /525,716,000 T 2 B8 — &7 ([ &
HER]) -AHZERBENR-_Z—X~F+_A
+ B ZAMERE & AEFRIE S - K
AEILNEHEBHAXNEFLEEREEE
MEBRARZ B EABEBZER BEAER
2% NBIER 9 Bl #125,716,0007 7T &
4,156,000/8 TR R R AREEFNEER
HE-_ZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFEZH
BREMENZRBERER (FERL2ENE
25) °
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24. SHORT-TERM LOANS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(V)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the deed of assignment entered between Hansom
and Citizens Money Lending Corporation Limited (“Citizens”)
on 19 July 2016, whereas Hansom assigned all its rights, title,
benefits and interest in the debt under the PN to Citizens.

The Company did not repay the debt and any part thereof on
the repayment date, therefore, in order to relieve the Group
from immediate repayment obligation of the debt and reduce
the burdensome interest expenses incurred, the Company and
Citizens have agreed on a settlement proposal pursuant to the
terms and conditions of a deed of settlement (the “Settlement
Deed”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Deed, the Company
shall duly issue and allot 800,000,000 shares at the price of
HK$0.025 per share to Citizens. The aggregate price of the
shares is in sum of HK$20,000,000 which shall be partially
set off against the debt. Further, the Company shall also duly
issue and deliver a convertible bond with a principal amount
of HK$11,000,000 to Citizens in full and final settlement of
the balance of the debt and all outstanding accrued interest.
Completion of the Settlement Deed is conditional upon fulfilment
of certain conditions on or before 8 May 2017. Given that those
conditions have not yet been fulfiled, the Company and Citizens
entered into two supplemental deeds dated 5 May 2017 and 9
June 2017 to extend the long stop date to 8 June 2017 and 8
August 2017, respectively. Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 9 February 2017, 5 May 2017 and 9 June
2017 for more information in relation to the Settlement Deed.

As certain conditions precedent to the Settlement Deed have
not been fulfilled on or before 8 August 2017, the Settlement
Deed has lapsed pursuant to the terms therein. As such, the
Settlement Deed has become null and void and of no further
effect, and both parties to the Settlement Deed have been
released from their respective obligations under the Settlement
Deed save for any antecedent breaches thereof. As at 31
December 2017, the outstanding principal amount and accrued
interest of the PN of approximately HK$25,716,000 and
HK$13,414,000 respectively were included in other payables
(please refer to Note 25 for details).

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

24. HHIE (&)
et (8
@iy (&)

REERERZUBAERIAF (TRR]DR
“E-RFLATNABRIMZEERE &
HERDERARNALRBR T ZARE
MFrEtE MaEkEBEETRR

AR B REE B I R AE (75 3 E 7 88
D Bt REAEE RS EEGEE 2
BE URAPMELAEEZHNERS AR
AERFIRENZE (MENRZIER]) 2GR
R AG A 195 € (B 3 o

BEBEENZREZER AARARER
B 150.0257% JT 2 (B 1& 2 & 317 & fo 3
800,000,0008% %10 F R R « B 1n 2 BB B ER
20,000,000 o8 SRR SHIERS © IESN - R
B INEE BT R4 %8 411,000,000
B2 A BBRES TFTRR  UWBHERRKRE
NESHRBERIAMREEZEFFE E
NRYBFETEER=_E—tFRA/\H
N ATEERE  HEEK - ERZEIEG
MAREER  AATRERRBR_ZE—tFHh
BEBR-_Z—t&HENANBRIRRFET
24 UEBIERAESERE-—S—+tF
NANBRE=_Z—+tFNANB - BREERS
REZEZER F2EARRAHAE-T
—+H#-ANBE —E—+tERARBR-
E—t+ENANBZAE

HRENREZETEREGER=2Z—+
FENANB 2B EAREER - BERRZE
EREEARRAB - AL BN RZBE &
WA EE W AENRIBEZTHES
HERBREESERNENZERE T ZEE
HEMERERENBRIN-R=ZF—+LF
+=RA=+—8 "5 5425,716,0007% T &
13,414,000 T 2 WA EEFR L EERN S5
K EETF SET AR IER A (FEEH2H
Bt 3E25) °

(v) RENRBDREE R IGAMEATERB S

HEe
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25.

26.

ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 25. FEAYFE X I H 1t B4 FRIE
PAYABLES

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Accrued charges ERHAX 12,066 13,803
Other payables (Notes (i) and (i) H R FRIE (Ma0)&30) 92,583 41,208
104,649 55,011

Notes: Kz -

0] Other payables mainly include interest payables to promissory (i) HENREFEBRENEALEZEFNE
notes of approximately HK$9,834,000 (2016: HK$7,336,000) #99,834,000%% 7T ( = ZF — /< : 7,336,000
and other payables to Citizens and Freeman of approximately 77T ) & CH M FE 1 R R K Freemanik I £
HK$39,130,000 and HK$1,580,000 respectively (2016: other 39,130,000/% 7T & 1,580,000/ 7T ( = F —7<
payable to Citizens of approximately HK$29,872,000) (please F - H A R R R 3K IE £929,872,000/% T )
refer to Note 24 for detalils). (FIEH2HMWE24) -

(i) Included in other payables of approximately HK$42,039,000 (i)  EMEAFEIEL42,039,000 T IE S HEA%
represented the gross proceeds received from rights issue R AR PR 15 IR R RE - AR R
subscribers. The balance will be recognised to share capital R =T —N\F— A= BERERRARER
when the rights issue is completed on 2 January 2018. Please (FHIBEBE2HMHIE40) -

reference to Note 40 for details.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. MEHEERE

The Group lease certain of its property, plant and equipment under AEEREREAERESTYE BEAK
finance leases. & o
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Minimum lease payments BMEMREE N HEHEERE
under finance leases
— within one year ——FR 619 =
—in the second to fifth years, inclusive —FFEFREF
(BEERME) 1,081 -
1,700 -
Less: Future finance charges R RIREE B A (118) -
Present value of finance leases MEMEECRE 1,582 =
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26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. MEHEHRE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Present value of minimum lease payments @i EHEE N2 REHEEFEZ

under finance leases RE
— within one year ——FR 559 -
- in the second to fifth years, inclusive —E_FEERF
(BREEREMF) 1,023 =
1,582 -
Less: Amount due for settlement J AR —FEANEEREZ IR
within one year (559) -
Amount due for settlement after one year AR —FI1RERZIE 1,023 =
27. PROMISSORY NOTES 27. AR EE
On 21 November 2012 and 11 April 2013, the Group issued seven RZE——F+—A=+—HEZ-Z—=FN0
and four promissory notes respectively of HK$10,000,000 each to A+—8 XEER+T—BBILE= 7? billk:3
eleven independents third parties. Each promissory note is issued TEfh RO AR ER ﬂﬁZ%%ﬂ 0,000,000
at 5% interest rate per annum with 7 years maturity from the date YEIT o B AN ERIRFFERSEEIT  REE
of issue. The net proceeds are intended to be used for investment TTHHR R EERH - FERBEFEREAR
in listed securities and/or general capital of the Group. KEEMEFR/KBEAEERZ —KRES -
The carrying amount and fair value of promissory notes at the end EAEBERERBARCEDSELRAALEED
of the reporting period are as follows: N
Carrying amount Fair value
IRESE AREE
2017 2016 2017 2016

B+t —TRF ZB-tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET FTEx FHET

Promissory notes A EIE
— Non-current liabilities —JERBEE 109,310 108,979 100,700 94,175
The fair value of the promissory notes is calculated based on the ERBBEZAABEIIKRBIZNI0% (=2
present value of contractually determined stream of future cash —ANF %) BERZAERKBE e REZR
flow discounted at rate of approximately 10% (2016: 11%). BsftE-
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. IELEMIE

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as the Group
had no material temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements (2016: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$533,132,000 (2016:
HK$491,187,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the Group. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit streams.

HRARBEEER BB HERENRAME
BERANCEASRLESALREZR  WAE
EHRERBERB (ZF—RF &) -

ﬁm} 7

REFBR AKEZEFAHEBROR
533,132,000/ 7t ( = F — 7N 4 : 491,187,000
ABIT) A AR EHA R E R 2 ERB I
B OB A TR ORI B 1205 RSO - B 1k 3 AR RE SRR
ERBEEE -

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. RN
Number of shares Amount
R%EE ME
2017 2016 2017 2016
Z2—t§ TR ZB—t§ Z—IT—RE
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T’ Fh& FTERT FET

Authorised: EIE
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—HA—HB SKkAEE
HK$0.01 each 0.018 T2 EBk

20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000

At 31 December, ordinary sharesof R+—-_A=+—8"

HK$0.01 each EFREE.OIEITZ
LR 20,000,000 20,000,000 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
At 1 January, ordinary shares of R—A—HB SkEE
HK$0.01 each 0.018 T 2 EiB% 2,132,261 1,802,261 21,323 18,023
Placing (Notes (i), (i) and (i) B (HTa£0) - () R (ii)) - 330,000 - 3,300
Placing (Notes (iv) and (v)) & (et R(W) 270,000 - 2,700 =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8© 2,402,261 2,132,261 24,023 21,323
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

@

(i)

(iv)

On 27 January 2016, the Company placed 200,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.32 per placing share.
A share premium of approximately HK$59,165,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$61,165,000 are intended to be used for general working
capital and repayment of the existing loans of the Group. Details
of the placing were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 15 January 2016 and 27 January 2016.

On 18 July 2016, the Company placed 82,000,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.28 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$21,476,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$22,296,000 are intended to be used for general working
capital of the Group and/or for future investments pursuant to
the investment objectives of the Company. Details of the placing
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 13 July
2016 and 18 July 2016.

On 22 December 2016, the Company placed 48,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.113 per placing
share. A share premium of approximately HK$4,781,000
had credited to share premium account. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$5,261,000 are intended to be used
for general working capital of the Group and/or for future
investments pursuant to the investment objectives of the
Company. Details of the placing were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 20 December 2016 and 22 December
2016.

On 10 January 2017, the Company placed 160,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.1 per placing share.
A share premium of approximately HK$14,400,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$15,520,000 are intended to be used for general working
capital of the Group and/or for future investments pursuant to
the investment objectives of the Company. Details of the placing
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 6 January
2017 and 10 January 2017.

On 7 March 2017, the Company placed 110,000,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.142 per placing share. A
share premium of approximately HK$14,520,000 had credited
to share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$15,151,000 are intended to be used for general working
capital of the Group and/or for future investments pursuant to
the investment objectives of the Company. Details of the placing
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 28
February 2017 and 7 March 2017.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

U

(i)

(iv)

20, IRA (&)

fisE

RNZBE—RE—HBA=++R AAFRE
200,000,0008% Bt & i& 17+ R & B A & R R
& & 150.32/8 It ° fZ 19 )& B 4959,165,000
BILETARMD B EBR -FIERIBFELN
61,165,000/ LR A EASEE 2 — R EEE
SRR EERNEEZRBER -ILEZFHB
FNRARRBHA-_Z—XNFEF—A+HBER
—E—RE—RA-t+ERAZALER-

RZZE—X"FtA+NB XAFREE
82,000,000/% Fid & B& 19+ AL & 8 B & X Ad
&I 150.287 I o IR 19 4 (B 4921,476,000
BB ARDEER FIERBFEEYD
22,296,000/ TR IE AR A Al 2 18 & B 12 A
EAEEZ —REBES R, SHARKEE -
REZHBINRARABHEA=-_ZT—RF
tA+=AR=_TE—R"FLtA+NBHZA%
ﬁqo

R-ZE—ARF+-_A=-+=-H ARQRFE
48,000,000k Bd & iz 0 - I BB A E K
fid & A% 190.11378 7T < B 17 /& (B 494,781,000
BILE T ARMD R ERR -FTERIBFRELN
5,261,000/ o EH R IE AR A Rl 2 % & BIZFAE
AEBFZ —REEBE N SHARKEE B
EZHBERARBBAZT—RE+=
AZ+tRAE=ZE—X"F+-_A=-+=HZA

EA

REZZB—tF—A+H ARENUREES
fix e & M £2.0.178 7T BL & 160,000,0008% AL &
R 47 o B £ )4 {8 #914,400,0007 7T E 5T A B
7)) (B AR ° P15 5% 1R % 88 4915,620,000/8 7T
BIRBEARA 2 E B RREAREZ —K
BEER R HRKIRE - BE ZFHBEHR
AARHAR-ZE—+F—ASBR=F
—tF-—RB+tHREZRAEA-

RZE—tF=AtH ARRINEEES
% B2 & A% 190.1427%8 7T Bic & 110,000,0008% Fid
& B o B 5 (8 914,520,000 T E 5T A
B& 17 ¥4 18 BR - P15 5038 /% %8 4915,151,0007%
TERIBEARRZIRE B IZREAEEZ —
BEEES R RARKIRE B EZFBE
RARAFIBHA—Z—+E-_A-+N\BE
—E—+tF=ZRAtRAZRAERN-

FRBTZMERMNRAA T EEE R ZRE K

PEZICEL T8
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  30. A2 Al Z Bt ik &
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF == EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R&E 6,432 14,511
Other tangible assets HEtBREE 17,583 18,590
Interests in subsidiaries RITB AR Z e 85,556 140,148
Conversion options embedded in AR SRR NS 2 AR
convertible notes 7 747
109,578 173,996
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At EcHEE 20,487 18,132
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - ReE R
receivables H b IR IE 7,428 6,556
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE 34,784 7,401
62,699 32,089
Total assets BEHE 172,277 206,085
Equity: s
Capital and reserves attributable to RAREEAERL
owners of the Company BARHE
Share capital N 24,023 21,323
Reserves (Note 31) f&fE (H1a£31) (75,261) 19,626
Total equity AR (51,238) 40,949
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
R e BT HRaR b
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-—ZT—tF+-A=+—HILtFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. A2 Rl Z Ik R & (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Liabilities: 81\
Current liabilities REBEE
Short-term loans EHER 6,833 =
Accrued charges and other payables JE A< R 2 I EL b B A5 KR 104,649 55,011
Obligations under finance leases & T S A 559 -
112,041 55,011
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASTB B A B FRIAR 1,141 1,146
Promissory notes HH R 109,310 108,979
Obligations under finance leases 74 T S AE 1,023 =
111,474 110,125
Total liabilities EEEH 223,515 165,136
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEEE 172,277 206,085
Net current liabilities REAEFHE (49,342 (22,922)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERABAES 60,236 151,074
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018 and signed gEEeN T \F=ZA=-_+NLBHtEKH
on its behalf by: ATATREESE:
Wong Danny F. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick
a1 RFE
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IR RS R R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 3. KARZREE
Available
-for-sale
Share financial
Share option  assetsequity  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
ARGE
SREE
RAEE BRERE ERERE 2RER fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T TR TAR THT
As at 1 January 2016 RZZ—rE-A—A 686,282 2,193 991 (635,012) 54,454
Loss for the year FREER - - - (119,930) (119,930)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRERZEYNS
net of income tax BNBRAMER - - (320) - (320)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EHEER - - (320) (119,930) (120,250)
Placing RE 89,084 - - - 89,084
Placing expenses RERZ (3,662) - - - (3,662)
As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R=F—~F+=-A=1—-HEK
—Z—+tF-f-H 771,704 2,193 671 (754,942) 19,626
Loss for the year FREE - - - (123522) (123,522)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMRERS
net of income tax BBRAEHR - - 664 - 664
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRREBRES - - 664 (123522) (122,858)
Share options lapsed EREXN - (2,193 - 2,193 -
Placing RE 28,920 - - - 28,920
Placing expenses RERX (949) - - - (949)
As at 31 December 2017 R=2-tF+=A=t-H 799,675 - 1,335 (876,271) (75,261)

176 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017



32.

33.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
iRE IS ERR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS VALUE PER 32.

SHARE

As at 31 December 2017, the net liabilities value per share is
HK$(0.02) (2016: net assets value per share was HK$0.02).

The calculation of net (liabilities)/assets value per share is based
on the net liabilities of approximately HK$(47,443,000) (2016:
net assets of approximately HK$43,747,000) and 2,402,261,000
ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
2,132,261,000).

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33.

Gold Intelligent Investment Development
Limited

On 1 August 2016, the Group has disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Gold Intelligent Investment Development Limited
with cash consideration of approximately HK$8 (equivalent to
US$1). On that date, interest of the associate passed to the
acquirer. Details of the liability disposed of, and the calculation of
the gain on disposal, are disclosed belows:

BR(AE) EEFE

R-ZB—+F+-_A=+—FH SERaEFE
B0.02)8B L (ZZ2—RF: FREEFEE.02
HBIT) ©

BR(AaE) /EEFENER-_Z—tF
+Z A=+ —H2ZBEFEEL(47,443,000)
B (ZE —~NF: EEFERL3,747,000
¥ 9T ) &2,402,261,0000% ( =& — /N F :
2,132,261,0000% ) B BT L MARATHE -

HE—BHEQF

Gold Intelligent Investment
Development Limited

RZZE-—XRFNA—B XK EHEGol
Intelligent Investment Development Limited 2
EHEBHTRA REKREHA/ET (HE
M1ETT) - B E R Bz ERDRZ A B E
HeoEERBEZHBREERGE ZAHENE
WEWT:

Analysis of liability over which control was lost EXEHEZEEST

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
T

Non-current liability FERBAE
Amount due to the Group & AR & B 3RIR (10)
Net liability disposed of &2 B EFE (10)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE— KB 2 B2 i

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
AT

Consideration received BURE -
Net liability disposed of il &z &8 EF58 10
Sale loan HEEBER (10)
Gain on disposal 4l 25 _
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aN=1

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE_—_ZT—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE

33.

34.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. HE—EMHEBLT (&)
(CONTINUED)
Gold Intelligent Investment Development Gold Intelligent Investment
Limited (Continued) Development Limited (&)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKBAGEZEELHRAFH
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FBT
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents NEe RRSEEER
B 2 R (B -
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, KEHEAE
As lessee ERAMEA
As at the end of each reporting period, the total future minimum REZ2FHREKR  BETAURBECEHED HE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due NZRRFEHRERBRLEDT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XKF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FiBT
Within one year —F R 9,915 5,878
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFENT (BEERMTE) 3,462 2,352
13,377 8,230
The Group leases office properties under operating lease AEERBEEHELHEENRAZTYE M
arrangement and the lease payments are fixed and pre-determined HERENEEBEAREA—ZE2WF (=
for the term one to four years (2016: one to four years). —NEF:—FEMEF) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ERE IR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35 MEFBMELEEGZHE

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

TRAFIAREAREEDFELRH 22D

ERERECHKARIREREFRNAKELES
BREPOBRMELTDELEZRERENE

f& e
Obligations
under
Promissory finance  Short-term
notes leases loans Total
RERE MERSRE BHER A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TEL TERL

As at 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+F—F—H 108,979 - - 108,979
Financing cash inflows REREMA - - 8,170 8,170
Financing cash outflows BERSTL - (526) - (526)
Interest paid ERFE (3,000) - - (3,000)
Non-cash movement FREEE) 3,331 2,108 (1,337) 4,102
As at 31 December 2017 R-E-tF+-A=+—-H 109,310 1,582 6,833 117,725
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZEZZT—tF+-_A=+T—HILFE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

36. EXBEALIRS

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group had entered into transactions with related parties, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, were carried out on

BEma M BmREMBMHMABREEN REBE

—ELER-F-AFT-AST-ALS
B ARERBEATHIRS ARAEE
RABMZ S INARE 2 AR BB R

normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the Group’s — M IR ETT -
business.
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T
Consultancy expenses paid to a related party ~ St FREEEA L 2 BEME
(Note (i) (Kizta)) - 200
Interest income received from a related party 2 4k RE:E A + 2 B B U A
(Note (i) (H1az(i) 372 372
Commission expenses paid to a related party XN FEEEALZ
(Note (i) B& &R (K1) 949 826
License fee paid to a related party for use of TEAPFAEREZEA LT
office (Note (i) SN ZERTE (KT ii)) - 66
Rental income received from a related party BlEEALTZHERA
(Note (ii}) (B2 (i) 1,200 600
Interest receivable from a related party BB AL Z2F 8
(Note (i) (Bt azam) 1,487 1,115
Notes: Kiat -

U

(i)

(i)

180

Mr. Wu Tse Wai, Frederick is the director of the Company and
Beijing Capital Partners Limited (“Beijing Capital”). It constitutes
a continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the
shareholder of Premium Castle. Please refer to the paragraph in
relation to “Subscription Agreement” under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Director’s Report on page 53.

Mr. Wong Danny F. is the director of the Company and the
shareholder of Beijing Securities Limited’s holding company.
Please refer to the paragraph in relation to “Placing Agreement”
under the section headed “Connected Transactions” in the
Director’s Report on page 54.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

36. EXBBEALRE (&)

Key management compensation FEEEE H M
2017 2016
—2—+tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHIT

Salaries and other short-term employee He EMEHEE RN

benefits 5,528 5,728
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme  iE{R& 5121 2 (B =3 32 32
5,560 5,760

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 27 August 2007 (the “Old
Scheme”) has expired and was replaced by a new share option
scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on 30
June 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). No further option can be
granted under the Old Scheme upon its expiration, but all options
granted previously will remain exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the Old Scheme and the relevant letters of offers to the
respective grantees. The Share Option Scheme had a life of ten
years and is due to expire on 29 June 2027.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme,
the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, in principle, is to
enable the Company to motivate participants for their significant
contributions to the growth of the Company and to retain and
maintain on-going business relationship with such participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Company. It is important for the Company to
provide them, where appropriate, with an additional incentive by
offering them an opportunity to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and to reward them for contributing to the Company’s
long-term success and prosperity. The principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

(i) The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any options to be granted under any
other scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the shares in issue as at the adoption date
unless refreshed by the shareholders. However, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme
should not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

37. URGABEBNRZRS

R-ZEEELFENA -+ EBEMNNERET
Bl (BB EEMIBAARRBRRR=-Z
—tEFERNA=ZTHUENFTERES ([
ARSI FTER - B S E MBI EE—2F
PR 35 BB AR - SR AT U FT B BB AR AE (D
A RIBEETE RASARAZEHBEEL K4
RERR T LATTE - BRI SR A+ F 1
BR_ZZE-—tFNA=-TNABEm-

RIBRE AR 8] 2 R R IR - BB 81 R
AlLEABRAAREDESEELARFER
FHEXER BEMMEFEZEF2EE (K
FZERNBNRIEEENRAARZRE
BR)ZFHBEEGRE - E2NRE AR FRRE
ERATRERSESARAREREERIES
RASNRE - I RN E W AR R REK ) K B
BEFTIEL Z BB - BB AR St 81 = 2 IR T

() BRFERREFH TUARTEREBER
B EKTREZ2MERERRIEE
(EETCEE Dk dul-0k=20E e 450
FTROZENAZ AATEBBANEK
MBI BITRNEEZ10% - A - 7
TERBFICRHERRITEZEH
B URRBEERMEMFTI SR
BERARITEZEZMMBERERA TEITZ
Bin #88 NSBIBTEEEITHRN
30% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &EHZE_—Z

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

182

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of the share.

An option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 28 days from the date of offer of the option. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant of the
option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten
years commencing on 30 June 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE=E—Z—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

On 3 September 2013, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 174,720 and 11,670,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$19 and HK$1.89 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 209,664 and 14,004,000 with an
exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 respectively. Details of
the adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed
in the announcement dated on 3 September 2013.

On 20 February 2014, the rights issue was completed. The
number and exercise price of Outstanding Share Options has
been adjusted. The 209,664 and 14,004,000 Outstanding Share
Options with an exercise price of HK$15.83 and HK$1.58 granted
on 28 November 2007 and 18 April 2011 immediately before the
rights issue has been adjusted to 587,059 and 39,211,200 with an
exercise price of HK$5.65 and HK$0.56 respectively. Details of the
adjustment of Outstanding Share Options have been disclosed in
the announcement dated 20 February 2014.

On 11 July 2014, the Company granted 132,640,000 share
options to eligible person to subscribe for up to 132,640,000
ordinary shares at an exercise price of HK$0.40 within the
exercisable period, under the Old Scheme.

At 31 December 2017, no number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme (2016: 14,299,219), representing Nil%
(2016: 0.67%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
No share options were exercised by the grantees during the year
(2016: Nil).

37. MR HERNARZRZ (H)

HER-ZE—=FENA=B%K RTEER
BB RTEEEERAER -R_ZZLF
+—A-"+N\BR-"ZE—FmWA+NEBEHD
RHR H 2174,72013 11,670,000/ 7 17 {5 B8
Bt (BEMER AT ZTEE A198 T k1.89745
7 ) B A% A209,66417 k14,004,000 (17{E
E15.83/8 70 & 1.587 870 ) « AT IERERAE
ZHBERBSEA_T—=ZFNLA=ZB A%
W

HER —ZE—FE =5 -+ B RITEE
BiEZHE RITEECEAE - RS LF
+—A=-+ N NBE-_Z—FWUA+/\BH 7
% H 2 209,66417 K.14,004,00013 7 77 & B8 B%
7 (ZEMRRFI2ITFEA15.838 7T Kk 1.58%
7T ) B #E /R587,05917 }39,211,20013 (171E
f85.6575 JT %0.567%8 JT ) ° 7 17 1% B8 AR 4 7 &
CHBEERABMAT—NE-_A=+HZA

ERE

RZF—NMFLA+—H ARAIAEER
A T #% H1132,640,00017 88 BE 4 - AR AT 7 (£
HARIEENEIZRITEEBOLAOB TRERS
132,640,0000% & &% ©

MR-ZE—tFE+-A=1+—8 REERES
IR EERARITEZEBRESRZROEE B
T(ZZT—7NF:14,2992190%) - th AR FE
BEETRPZ0% (ZF—NE:0.67%) °
EBEARFEABETETABERE(ZZ—X
FofE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZEZZT—tF+-_A=+T—HILFE

IN=N:

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2011 was HK$0.03 each. Options were priced using
a binomial option pricing model.
Inputs into the model
Grant date share price HK$0.081
Exercise price HK$0.890
Expected volatility 88.71%
Option life 6.4 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 2.210%
Exercise multiple 1.2
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies share price over the previous 331
weeks.
The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2014 was HK$0.19 each. Options were priced using
a binomial option pricing model.
Inputs into the model
Grant date share price HK$0.4
Exercise price HK$0.4
Expected volatility 90.43%
Option life 3.1 years
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.88%
Exercise multiple 2.2
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the comparable companies share price over the previous 162
weeks.
The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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RBE-T——F+-_A=+—HLEFEERY
ZBEREZ AREEREMN0.03ETT - B
TR AR EEELERE-

EA L Eichd DN

HHBEZKE 0.0817% 7T
TEE 0.8907%& 7T
T8 HA K 1R 88.71%
B R 75 2R 6.4%
fi% 5. B 7 = 0%
45 3 g ) = 2.210%
TEEH 1.2
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees during the year ended 31

37. MR HERNARZRZ (H)

TEEBEERESFEALVRBENEE
SE+F+toASH—ALFEZED:

December 2017:
Number of share options
BREHAE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise
at Granted Exercised Lapsed at price at price at
1 January during during during 31 December 1January 31 December
2017 the year the year the year 2017 2017 2017 Date of grant Exercisable period
R=B-tf R=B-t& RZB-tf RoB-tF
-B-H +ZB=t-H -B-B +=B=t-H
MR ERR FR{TE ERXX HARTE 2R E 2R RiHAH fixi &
(HKS) (HKS) (Note (j)
(%7 (%7) (Hrity)
Directors
is
Mr. Wong Danny F. 73,382 - - (73,382) - 5.65 Nil 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
ERELE ¥ CERLE+-A-tNA CERELEL-ACTNRE
—8-tFENA=TAB
389,760 - - (389,760) - 0.56 Nil 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
% -“E2--FmATNR “2--5mAtN\RE
ZE-tENAZTRA
Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick 73,382 - (73,382) - 5.65 Nil 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
RTEEE 2 CBBLET-AZTAH ZBELET-ATNRE
ZE-tENAZTAH
389,760 - - (389,760) - 0.56 Nil 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
% -®--FmATNA “2--f@AtNAE
—8-tFENA=TAB
Mr. Fong Chi Wah 73,382 - - (73,382 - 5.65 Nil 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
HEERE % -BRtE+-A=tNA Z2RtEt-A=TNAE
ZE-tENAZTRA
389,760 - - (389,760) - 056 Nil 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
2 -“E--F@ATAR —Z2--¥MA+NHE=%
—tENAZtAA
Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen 73,383 - - (73,383) - 5.65 Nil 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BHAKE ¥ CERLE+-A-tNA CERELEL-ACTNRE
—8-tFENA=TAB
389,760 - - (389,760) - 0.56 Nil 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
% -“E2--FmATNR —2--5mAtN\AE=%
-tENAZTAE
Mr. Liu Jin 73,382 - - (73,382) - 5.65 Nil 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
gL 2 CBBLET-AZTAH ZBELET-ATNRE
ZE-tENAZTAH
389,760 - - (389,760) - 0.56 Nil 18 Apr 2011 18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
% -“®--FmATNA “2--£MAtNREZE
—tENA=tAE
2,315,711 - - (2315,711) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-_ZT—+F+_A=+—BILFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Number of share options
BREHA

Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during during 31 December
2017 the year the year the year 2017
RZB-t& RZB-t&
-B-H +ZBZt-H
MR FRRM B d ERXR MR

Date of grant

RH A

37. URODABERIR 2R Z (&)

Exercisable period

S
(Note (j)
(Hit)

Resigned directors

BREES

Other eligible participants
HtAERSRE

Total
At

Weighted average exercise price

MET R
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220,148 = = (220,148) -
1,169,280 = = (1,169,280) =
10,594,080 = = (10,594,080) =
14,299,219 - - (14,299,219) -
HK$0.77 - - - HK$Nil
0TTET - - - FEL

Exercise Exercise
price at price at
1January 31 December
2017 2017
Ro2-tF RIB-tF
-A-B TZA=t-B
TR 2TEE
(HKS) (HKS)
(%7 (B1)
5.65 Nil

2

0.56 Nil

2

0.56 Nil

g

28 Nov 2007
Z2RLET-AZTNB

18 Apr 2011
~%--£BATAR

18 Apr 2011
—&--£BA+NA

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
“BBtE+-B=1tNRE
ZE-tFENAZTARRA

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
Z2-—-F@ATNBE
“2-tENAZTAR

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
Z2--F@ATNBE
ZE-tFNAZtARA
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors and employees during the year ended 31

December 2016:

Number of share options
fRRRERE

Outstanding

at
1 January
2016

RZZ-—RE

—A-H
RALTHE

Outstanding
Cranted Exercised Lapsed at
during during during 31 December
the year the year the year 2016
RZE-RE
+
FRRIL ERTTRE FRERR

37. URODAERIR 2R S (&)

TERBEEEEREEMBACRABEREREE

Exercise
price at

1 January
2016

—=

Exercise

price at

31 December
2016
RZZ-—RE
+=A=+-H
2R
(HKS)

(#7)

Date of grant

RHiRg

RETZA=+—HIEFEZEH:

Exercisable period

fifes
(Note (j)
(Hit)

Directors

Mr. Wong Danny F.
EREEE

Mr. Wu Tse Wai Frederick
RTERE

Mr. Fong Chi Wah
hEERE

Mr. Char Shik Ngor, Stephen
ERHEE

Mr. Liu Jin
Bk

73,382 = = = 73,382
389,760 = = = 389,760
73,382 = = = 73,382
389,760 = = = 389,760
78,382 = = = 73,382
389,760 = = = 389,760
73,383 = = = 78,383
389,760 = = = 389,760
73,382 = = = 73,382
389,760 = = = 389,760
2,315,711 = = = 2,315,711

565

056

5.65

056

565

0.56

565

056

5.65

056

BREBEEESHR DA 2017F 5

565

056

5.6

056

565

0.56

565

056

5.6

056

28 Nov 2007
“ERLET-A=HA

18 Apr 2011
“2——4£@AtAR

28 Nov 2007
“RRLET-ATAR

18 Apr 2011
“§-—#mATAR

28 Nov 2007
“ZRLEH-R=tAR

18 Apr 2011
—Z-—EmAtNR

28 Nov 2007
“ERLET-A=HA

18 Apr 2011
“2——4£@AtAR

28 Nov 2007
“RRLET-ATAR

18 Apr 2011
—F——#mATAR

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
“RRLEF-A-TN\AEZ
“EF-tF\A=15A

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
2 FEATNAE
“EHFNACTAR

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
FELFT—AZT\BE
“F-tFN\A=1/A

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
“2——%MAt/\RE
“EF-tF\A=15A

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
“ERLET-A-tN\RE
“EHFNACTAR

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
—F—F¥EATN\RE
2—tF\AZTAR

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
“RRLET-A-TN\AEZ
“EF-tF\A=15A

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
B FEATNAE
“EHFNACTAR

28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
—R2LEI—A-TNAE
=T—HENA=AR

18 Apr 2011 to 26 Aug 2017
2 FOATN\BE=®
—tENAZ1RA
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 37. URGAERAARZRXE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Number of share options

REREHE

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Exercise

at Granted Exercised Lapsed at price at price at

1 January during during during 31 December 1 January 31 December

2016 the year the year the year 2916 2016 2016  Date of grant Exercisable period

R-B-Af RIB—7RE R-F-RFf RIB-AF

-A-8 -f-B t-A=t-8
HATHE FREH FRITRE FRKH 2{1f%fE 2R RS fyid
HS) (HKS) Mote )
(#7) (&7) (Hrith)
Resigned directors 220,148 = = = 220,148 566 565 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2007 to 26 Aug 2017
BREES ZZTLFt-AZt/\B ZERLFT-AZtNRZ
—2-tE\A=t~R
1,169,280 - - - 1169280 056 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr201110 26 Aug 2017
—2——EmA+AR —2——#mAH)\RE
ZZ—+E\AZT5RB
Other eligible participants 10594080 - - - 10594080 056 056 18Apr2011 18 Apr 201110 26 Aug 2017
HtRERSRE “T——5mATAR “3——5NAT\RE=%
—tFN\A=17~A
Total 14299219 = . - 14299219
&t
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.77 - - - HK80.77
NEFSTEE 07TETL - - - 0.77ET

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had the weighted R-ZE—R"F+ZA=+—HRHKRITEERE

average remaining contractual life of 0.65 years. Z I T & L F HR0.65% o

Note: Hiaz -

i) In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement, ()  IREEARRD REGE 2 ZHE 2 65K ()& %30%
(i) 2 maximum of 30% options are exercisable from the date of BEARE B B HARR A T1T1E: (DB &%
grant; (i) a maximum of another 30% options, plus any options 30%HE B HE + hn_E ()P i AR AT R 2 AR AR BE IR
being unexercised in (), in aggregate not exceeding 60% of 1 AETBERBER L ERESRZ260% 8
total options granted, are exercisable from 28 November 2008, R N\F+T—AZ T N\BRATIE: &
(iii) and the remaining 40% options, plus any options being (iif) B BRA0% B AR AE - A0 L () B (i) R M AR TE 2
unexercised in (i) and (i), are exercisable from 28 November EAERE RZTEENF+—HA=+/\H
2009 to 26 August 2017. ET—+FNAZFNBBEAFE

188 National Investments Fund Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R KRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+tHF+_A=+—HILtFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. TEMBEA T
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the RERPKR ARREZERMBAR 2B W
reporting period are as follows: ™

Proportion of nominal value
equity interest and

Name of Place of incorporation Fully Paid voting power directly Principal
subsidiary or operation Class of share share capital attributable to the Company activities
APFHEEGRETDE
KEAREE SRR AL & 5 it B R4 &5l BHERE idi)EEL 147 TEER
2017 2016

ZB-tF “B-AF

Top Onward Development British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (“Top Onward”)

HEZRAR AR EBRIHS gl A REZR
(T4REE])

Essence Sharp Holdings Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Essence Sharp”)

Essence Sharp KEREUES Tk A REER
Holdings Limited
([Essence Sharp |)

Massive Shine Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(‘Massive Shine”)

Massive Shine Limited EBRRHS gl ES BEER
([Massive Shine | )

Vast Spirit Investment Holding British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
Limited (*Vast Spirit”)

Vast Spirit Investment KERUES Lk Y BEER
Holding Limited
([Vast Spirit | )

Old Peak Limited (“Old Peak”) British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings

Old Peak Limited EBRAES ERK i RERK
(TOld Peak | )

Eighty Riches Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(‘Eighty Riches’)

Eighty Riches RERLES ERR 1% RERR
Limited
(Eighty Riches | )

Union Power Holdings Limited ~ British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(“Union Power”)

BN SEEER AR RRELES gl E REZR
(MEHEE])

Fine East Trading Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holdings
(‘Fine East’)

Fine East EBREIHS Lk e REER
Trading Limited
([Fine East |)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZEZZT—tF+-_A=+T—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
None of the subsidiaries issued debt securities during the year or at
the year end.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which, in the

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the

results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive lengths.

39. PLEDGED OF ASSETS
Deposits with banks earn interest at floating rates based on bank
deposit and saving rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. At 31 December 2017, the bank deposits of
HK$2,070,000 (2016: HK$2,040,000) were pledged to a bank to
secure trade credit facilities granted to the Group.

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD
(i) On 2 January 2018, the Company completed the rights

issue on the basis of one rights share for every two shares
held on the record date. 1,201,130,456 shares were issued
at a subscription price of HK$0.035 per rights share. A share
premium of approximately HK$30,028,000 had credited to
share premium account. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$40,280,000 are intended to be used for repayment
of the outstanding indebtedness and as general working
capital of the Group. Details of the rights issue were set out
in the Company’s announcements dated on 21 November
2017 and 28 November 2017 and the Company’s
prospectus dated 7 December 2017.

(ii) On 2 January 2018, the Company has fully settled the
loan entered with Freeman with cash of approximately
HK$1,580,000 (please refer to Notes 24 and 25 for details).

(i)  On 5 Jan 2018, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party in
respect of sale of an other tangible asset at HK$16,000,000.
On 5 Jan 2018, the sale has been fully settled with cash of
HK$16,000,000

(iv)  On 8 January 2018, the Company has fully settled the
loan entered with Citizens with cash of approximately
HK$39,233,000 (please refer to Notes 24 and 25 for details).
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38.

39.

40.

FTENRBLF (&)

BEMBARNFAXRFERETERES -

ERENAAREERRIBEEARAEEER
FEENAEENBLRR - ARBEERR &
FIE B A R F B EBREILE

EEEH

IR1T 17 SR 18 8RB 17 17 3 M (it B A R 4R % &) A
K&t B o BT R R B IFIRITF KT RA I
T HENCE R EEEZRT - R_E—+
F+—_HA=+—H" 2,070,000 T (ZZT—7~
F 12,040,000/ 70) ZRITFE R EEH T IR
T - URERTASEZESERME -

ERHEEE

i) RZZE—N\F—F-B ARAZTK
B B HTE S MR G ERE—
REAERE AR 10 2 B E T H K - AR F]
BREESRERRHD0.035% T 3
171,201,130,4568& & 1 - B 15 & B 49
30,028,0007% 7t B 5 A B% 17 /4 (B BR © AT
18 3% 78 7% ¥ 4940,280,0005% 7T £ B M ME
BHAEBEEKEMBEAERZ —KE
BES -HBRZHFBRERARAAEA
—E2—+tF+—HA=t+t—-Bk=ZF—+
F+—A-t+N\BHZRAEUKRARQTH
HMA—ZT—+F+_-_A+tHZEER-

iy R=ZZ—N\F—A=-H ARAIEMNUR
& #91,580,0007% 7 7& E 455 B Freeman
R ER (FIERMFE24K%25) o

iy RZZE—N\F—AAH AR AIHE—F
BYE=RIMVEEHH RAEGHEN
16,000,000 THEHM B EE -
R-ZZE—N\F—HARAB #HEEURE
16,000,000/ JL BB S ©

RZE—N\F—AN\B ARREMNHE
& 4939,233,00078 LB H & E EHR RAT
Y ZER (FBERKE24%25) °

(iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

W)

On 26 March 2018, the Company received a petition from
Medisun Holdings Limited in the matter of the Companies
(Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provision) Ordinance from
the High Court that the Company may be wound up by the
High Court on the ground that the Company is unable to
pay its debts. The petition was filed against the Company
for failure to settle the sum of approximately HK$7,143,000
(the “Petition”). On 29 March 2018, the Company received
a notice from Carley Company S.A., a creditor of not less
than HK$700,000 (being the amount of outstanding rental)
of the Company, that it intends to appear on the hearing
of the Petition to support such petition. Please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 26 March 2018 and 27
March 2018 for further details of the Petition.

41. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

42.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, additions to property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$2,081,000 were made
under the finance leases which of approximately HK$51,000 have
made by the Group as down payment.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.

40. ERHAEREE (&)

vy R-ZZE—NFEZA=F+B Axalk
IeErhelianEEE@mMERA
A AT OB 8 RAEIBE) GHlR & &
FRIREHNEREF AR AAEES
EXRRERARNRENEENERETT
BRCZEBDHEANARELEER
5 #97,143,000/8 MR H ([25E]) °
RZE—NE=A=-+NB ARAAE
¥ Carley Company S.A. (&R & & D
700,000% 7T (Bl A AR (B2 & 5 8) /Y
EREAN)BEHNBN REEEHER
BLRANTIREF - BHAZF 2 #E—
SHBRE2HARRBHA-T—N\&E
=A-t+RBR-ZE-NE=A=-++
Bl Z AN

4. F¥EERH

HE-"Z—+tE+-"A=+—BILtEE &K
SEREREBERAEVE BERKBELH
2,081,000/ 7T+ H A = 1 £951,000% T 1E &

42. TIRGEMBRR 2RE

EEER_E-\F=ZAZTNLBHAELRE
THEBMBEREK -
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Five Years Financial Summary
LENBRE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEBBAELRFE 2 ¥E BERBEHMENT

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BHLFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
=2—tF —T—RF —ET-—HF —T-OmOF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT T FHIT T
Results ]
Revenue U zs 2,915 1,785 (27,193 56,480 (42,608)
Loss before taxation BRI RIS R (123,593) (114,413) (312,636) (112,941) (117,881)
Taxation Hi1E - - - - -
Loss attributable to RAREE AE
owners of the Company [y (123,593) (114,413) (312,636) (112,941) (117,881)
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2+t —ZT—RF —ET—HF —ET—NOF =—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT TFHBIT FHBT FHT
Assets and liabilities BEKEE
Total assets BERE 174,931 207,737 199,852 469,018 231,790
Total liabilities BfEEsE (222,374) (163,990) (126,242) (173,026) (111,447)
Total equity Em AR (47,443) 43,747 73,610 295,992 120,343
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